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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (THE “GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of the GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on the GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on the GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the main board of the Stock Exchange and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on the GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the
Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of
this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of KVB
Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief
the information contained in this report is accurate and complete
in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and
there are no other matters the omission of which would make
any statement herein or this report misleading.
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STATEMENT FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Dear shareholders:

On behalf of Board of directors (the “Directors”) of KVB Kunlun
Financial Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present to the
audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014 to our shareholders and investors.

2014 is the second year since the Company was successfully
listed on Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. To strengthen listing compliance, thereby
further consolidate the listing status, increase results and
steadily push forward the set strategic goal has become the
key performance indicators (KPI) of the listed groups in 2014.

The Group’s total revenue has increased from approximately
HK$177 million in 2013 to approximately HK$189 million in
2014, up about 6.7%. The Group recorded an annual profit of
approximately HK$35 million in 2014. It is worth mentioning
that the global foreign exchange market experienced market
conditions with the historically lowest volatility in the first half of
2014. Such market sentiment reduced trading intentions of the
Group’s customers, which adversely affected the Group’s foreign
exchange brokerage business due to lower trading volume. The
entire market conditions got improved since the third quarter
and reached a moderate volatile market condition with the U.S
announcement of its exit from QE3 and sharp decline in bulk
commodities and non-US currencies in the fourth quarter, the
Group firmly grasped the market conditions for a short period
in the last quarter, successfully turning losses into a profits,
proving the ability of the Group’s core trading department to
grasp market conditions and achieve profits again.

Amid the conditions that the profits were turned to losses in
the first half of 2014, the management of the Group withstood
pressure from costs and made investment in employee share
options, forex star system-related information technology, market
brand, marketing and other aspects, which added the positive
elements to the future business development of the Group.

At the time | wrote 2014 annual report, two major events that
inherit the past and usher in the future are worthwhile to be
presented to shareholders. Firstly, the Company issued various
announcements dated from 11 November 2014 to 26 February
2015, introducing CITIC Securities to become the strategic
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STATEMENT FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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controlling shareholder. Secondly, on the transition from the
old year to the new year for the first quarter in 2015, the Swiss
franc exchange rate cliff black swan event caused a huge
shock against the global foreign exchange industry while we
fully managed to ride on this storm. Such two major events have
highlighted the Group’s core competitiveness, thereby once
again proving the aggressiveness of the Group in strategic
deployment and development and efficiency and pragmatism
in risk management and control.

Looking to the future, even though the timeframe is difficult
to be predicted, we remain confident. | expect that there will
be various driving forces driving opportunities for the future
development and increased revenues of the Group. From a
macro perspective, this includes the new wave of internet finance
and China’s financial reform with exchange rate marketization
taken as the core goal. China’s offshore finance development
as one of new factors for global economic growth will drive our
overseas business needs to a great extent. In these predictable
megatrends, the Group is relatively in a favorable position, and
will eventually benefit from the prior deployment and experience
accumulation in terms of market, business models, information
technology and other aspects.

The successful introduction of CITIC Securities as the strategic
controlling shareholder is an effective decision to maximize
interests of all shareholders of the listed group, as well as the
best choice from the perspective of the Company’s employees
and customers; after the merger and acquisition, we can fully
expect that CITIC Securities as one of the most progressive and
globalized leading full-fledged securities services company in
China will provide rich strategic resources and support for the
listed group. Leveraging on the powerful resources platform
and network advantages of CITIC Securities, the Group will
accelerate market deployment to a more extensive scale,
develop different financial products and services, thereby fully
grasping the opportunities from the future foreign exchange
markets and bringing higher returns for shareholders.

Liu Stefan
Chief executive officer and executive director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Board is pleased to present the audited consolidated results
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014, together
with the audited comparative figures for the corresponding year
in 2013.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Business review

During the first eight months of 2014, the market was quiet and
volatility hit historically low levels, while in the last four months
of the year, due to economic and geopolitical factors, the market
volatility rose significantly. The gold price was trading in the
range of approximately US$1,393/ounce to below US$1,130/
ounce. The AUD/USD dropped from 0.95 to 0.77 during the year,
the lowest level since 2009. The EUR/USD dropped from 1.4 to
1.2 during the year; the unexpected large market volatility in
the last four months has boosted the profit margin of the margin
leveraged foreign trading business of the Group.

During the year under review, the Group launched a marketing
campaign to expand its local market share in addition to its well-
developed referral client base over the past years. Furthermore,
the Group put in additional resources in marketing development
after listing. As a result, the number of clients increased by
36.1% for the year under review compared with the year ended
31 December 2013.

During the year under review, the Group launched China
Stock Index 300 (“CSI300”) and Australia Stock Market Index
(“Aussie200”) and one new commodity under leveraged
trading, namely Copper contracts for difference (“CFD”). A
new currency pair “USDCNH” was also added to our currency
trading list. This is in line with the market trend that investors
invest in commodities and stock markets and currencies in a
way to safeguard the value of their wealth. The net deposit of
the margin leveraged trading clients of the Group has been
increased 26.8% compared with the year ended 31 December
2013. This has also enhanced the Group’s leveraged margin
trading profitability.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

T BILRG Z wt  S o3 He

Total income

The total income of the Group increased by approximately
6.7% to approximately HK$188.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 from approximately HK$176.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

A. Leveraged foreign exchange and other trading income

The leveraged foreign exchange and other trading
income of the Group increased by approximately 6.4%
to approximately HK$144.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2014 from approximately HK$135.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2013. This is mainly
due to the higher trading volume during the year ended
31 December 2014 as compared to the year ended 31
December 2013.

B. Cash dealing income

The cash dealing income of the Group increased by
approximately 44.6% from approximately HK$11.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2013 to HK$16.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2014. The increase
was mainly attributable to the higher transaction volume
for market maker hedge and natural hedge in the cash
dealing service business.

C. Other income

Other income of the Group decreased by approximately
6.3% to approximately HK$27.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2014 from approximately HK$29.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The fees and commission income of the Group decreased
from approximately HK$26.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2013 to approximately HK$23.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014. The major component of fees and
commission was the commission charged to the referred clients
from leveraged forex and dealing counterparties based on the
trading volume. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease
in charging commission to clients referred by referrer parties
during the year under review compared with the year ended 31
December 2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded
an exchange gain of approximately HK$0.02 million while there
was an exchange loss of approximately HK$1.4 million during
the year ended 31 December 2013. This was mainly due to the
period-end translation of monetary assets denominated in foreign
currency into local reporting currency by KVB Kunlun New
Zealand Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The management fee income of the Group decreased to
approximately HK$2.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2014 from approximately HK$2.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2013. This is mainly due to the Group no longer
receiving management fee income from KVB Kunlun Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries which do not belong to the Group
(collectively, the “Non-Listed Group”) as a result of further
business separation from the Non-Listed Group.

Fees and commission expenses

The fees and commission expenses of the Group increased by
approximately 5.8% to approximately HK$61.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014 from approximately HK$57.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2013. The increase was
mainly due to the increase in trading volume of the clients of the
Group referred by referral parties.

Staff costs

The staff cost of the Group increased by approximately 18.6% to
approximately HK$36.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2014 from approximately HK$30.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2013. The increase was mainly due to staff share
option expenses recorded.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization increased by approximately
23.1% to approximately HK$3.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 from approximately HK$2.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013. The increase was mainly due to the
upgrade of our online trading platform and the newly capitalized
office equipment and leasehold improvements for the period
under review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Lease payments under land and buildings

Lease payments under land and buildings increased by
approximately 10.0% to approximately HK$6.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014 from approximately HK$5.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2013 this was mainly
due to rent increase of the Beijing office and rent increase in
Sydney & Melbourne office due to lease renewal in July & June
2014 with an increase in rent.

Administrative and other operating expenses

The administrative and other operating expenses of the Group
increased by approximately 14.2% to approximately HK$33.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2014 from approximately
HK$29.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2013. This
increase was primarily due to the increase in marketing
expenses by approximately HK$2.2 million during the year
ended 31 December 2014 as compared with the year ended
31 December 2013 as the result of new marketing channels
development.

Net profit and net profit margin

For the reasons set forth above, the Group achieved net profit of
approximately HK$35.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2014 compared with the net profit of approximately HK$34.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2013. The net profit
margin for the year ended 31 December 2014 was approximately
18.6%.

In summary, the increase in profitability of the Group was
primarily contributed by:

. higher trading volume resulting in higher leverage foreign
exchange trading income in the last four months;

. higher transaction volume for market maker hedge and
natural hedge resulting in higher cash dealing income.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the period under review, the operations of the Group
have been financed principally by equity capital, cash generated
by the Group’s business operations and the cash and bank
deposits.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio calculated on the basis of net debts (financial
lease obligation and amounts due to fellow subsidiaries) over
the total shareholders’ fund as at 31 December 2014 was
approximately 0.15% (2013: 0.13%).

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

During the year under review, the Group recorded an exchange
gain of approximately HK$0.02 million (2013: approximately
loss of HK$1.4 million). This was mainly due to the month-
end translation of monetary assets denominated in foreign
currency into local reporting currency by the subsidiary of the
Group in New Zealand. The main contributor to this result was
the appreciation of USD and the exchange rate of USD/NZD
changed from approximately 1.2165 as at 31 December 2013
to 1.2758 as at 31 December 2014.

The foreign currency risk is managed proactively by regular
review of the currency positions in the basket of currency mix.
In order to minimize the exposure of the Group to risk, the Group
has hedge strategy based on prevailing market conditions and
working capital requirements of sub-companies.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, the capital structure of the Group
consists of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves.

NEW PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The Group launched a China Stock Index 300 (“CSI300"),
Australia Stock Market Index (“Aussie200”) and one new
commodity under leveraged trading, namely Copper contracts
for difference (“CFD”). A new currency pair “USDCNH” was
also added to the Group currency trading list during the year
under review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
DURING THE PERIOD UNDER REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group did not
have any material acquisitions and disposals.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group engaged a total of 64
employees (2013: a total of 55). Total staff costs including
Directors’ remuneration for the period under review amounting
to approximately HK$36.5 million (2013: HK$30.8 million). The
Group’s remuneration policies are in line with the prevailing
market practices and are determined on the basis of performance

and experience of individual employees.

The Group provides retirement benefits in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations in the place where the staff is
employed.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme pursuant to
which the Directors and employees of the Group are entitled to
participate.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014, certain bank balances of the Group
amounting to approximately HK$45.5 million were used to secure
the banking facilities and the offices lease bonds.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

The future investment plans of the Group are detailed in the
sub-section headed “Business objectives and future plans”
in the prospectus of the Company dated 11 June 2013 (the
“Prospectus”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

We plan to:

1. expand operations in the worldwide overseas Chinese
and Japanese communities;

2. increase in the range of our financial services and
products;

3. further upgrade our online trading platform; and

4. strategically grow through mergers and acquisitions.

The source of funding for these investment plans is from the net
proceeds of the Placing of approximately HK$125.3 million. Our
Directors presently intend that the net proceeds will be applied
as follows:
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The new PRC subsidiary located in Zhuhai City Hengqgin New
District has been set up and the Group is expecting further
progress in this new subsidiary in the coming year. The Group
will continuously conduct studies on identifying hot spots to
develop new branches or subsidiaries; and perform market
studies to explore commercial viability for new products.

During the year under review, the Group had developed new
financial services and products through internally generated
funding.

The Group spent HK$6.3 million in 2014 to revamp the network
in order to keep on improving the efficiency, security, availability
and manageability of the online trading platform.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND COMPANY SECRETARY

The biographical details in respect of the directors (the
“Directors”) and the senior management of KVB Kunlun Financial
Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) as at the date of this report are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIU Stefan (2IfR##5L4), aged 48, is the chief executive
officer of the Company. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liu is one of the responsible
officers of KVB Kunlun International (HK) Limited (“KVB HK”)
and is also a director of KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited (“KVB
Holdings”) and certain subsidiaries of KVB Holdings which do
not belong to the Group.

Mr. Liu was appointed the managing director of the Group in
March 2006 and the country manager of New Zealand and
Australia in August 2011. He was appointed as a Director of the
Company on 9 November 2010 and is responsible for the overall
management and strategic development of the Group.

Before joining the Group, Mr. Liu served as the managing
director of Aiming International (New Zealand) Co. Limited from
August 1997 to August 2001 and was responsible for fostering
the development plan, structuring investment direction and
strategy, liaising and maintaining relationships with business
partners and searching for and maintaining public relationship
with potential strategic investors.

With his previous and current positions in the Group and other
companies, Mr. Liu has obtained over 12 years of experience in
the forex market which is relevant to the management, operation
and development of the Group. Mr. Liu obtained his bachelor’s
degree in arts from the Tianjin Foreign Studies University (K&
SN FEARER) in July 1989.

Mr. NG Chee Hung Frederick (R85 54 ), aged 59, joined the
Group in August 2006 and has been an executive director of
KVB HK since June 2009. Mr. Ng is responsible for managing
the operations of KVB HK and the treasury and dealing functions
of the Group. Mr. Ng is also the executive director and one
of the responsible officers of each of KVB HK and certain
subsidiaries of KVB Holdings which do not belong to the Group.
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Mr. Ng is also a director of each of LXL Capital IV Limited,
LXL Capital VIII Limited, LXL Capital IX Limited, LXL Capital
V Limited and Yorkastle Capital Limited. Mr. Ng has over 30
years of experience in the financial services industry. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Ng had worked at corporations in Hong
Kong, Toronto, Tokyo, Singapore and Shanghai. From 2002 to
2006, Mr. Ng was the managing partner of Quantitative Asset
Management Group which was engaged in asset management
and he was responsible for managing and overseeing daily
operations including all trade execution and reconciliation. From
June 1992 to January 2002, Mr. Ng was employed with Credit
Agricole Group (a banking group based in France) and served
in various positions including vice president and regional forex
manager — North Asia, senior vice president and head of forex
trading hub - Asia, treasurer — China, and head of sales of
Greater China and assistant general manager of capital markets.
From October 1978 to January 1992, Mr. Ng was employed
with the Royal Bank of Canada and last held the position of
forex manager. Mr. Ng is a member of the Institute of Public
Accountants, Australia and a certified member of the Institute
of Certified Management Accountants, Australia. Mr. Ng was
appointed as a Director on 15 April 2011.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LI Zhi Da (FEiE%E), aged 61,
board of Directors. Mr. Li is one of the founders of the Group

is the chairman of the

and one of the controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Li
was a director of each of KVB Kunlun New Zealand Limited and
KVB HK since their respective incorporation until May 2009 and
June 2009, respectively. Mr. Li is also a director of each of KVB
Holdings, LXL Capital | Limited and LXL Capital Il Limited. Mr.
Li was the legal representative of a private company engaged
in the business of production and sales of cosmetics in the
PRC, including the brand “Mininurse”. Since the disposal of the
cosmetics business in December 2003, Mr. Li has diversified his
investments into other business areas including tourism business
in the PRC. Mr.
management from the Zhejiang University (#/LX2) in March

Li obtained his master’s degree in project

1994. Mr. Li was appointed as a Director on 30 August 2011.
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Mr. Stephen Gregory McCOY, aged 62, joined the Group in
October 2006 as the senior manager of operations and was
later appointed the country manager of Australia in 2008. Mr.
McCoy is also a director of KVB Kunlun Pty Ltd and LXL Capital
[l Limited. Mr. McCoy is also a director of other subsidiaries of
KVB Holdings which do not belong to the Group. Before joining
the Group, Mr. McCoy worked at Arab Bank Australia Limited as
an internal auditor from May 2002 to December 2003 and later
as the head of operations from January 2004 to October 2006
and was responsible for managing the operations department of
the bank including treasury settlements, retail operations, loan
administration, office administration, trade finance and product
compliance in line with regulatory authorities and policies and
procedures of the bank and before that, Mr. McCoy worked at
Westpac Banking Corporation for over 30 years from February
1969 to April 2001 and last held the position of manager of
operational risk. With the previous and current positions held
by Mr. McCoy in the Group and other companies, Mr. McCoy
has obtained over 42 years of combined experience in the
financial services industry which is relevant to the operation
and development of the Group. Mr. McCoy was appointed as a
Director on 15 April 2011.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. ZHAO Guixin (fH#£2 % T), aged 51, joined the Group in
April 2011. From June 2005 to July 2007, Ms. Zhao worked at
REEEIR
&2 R AR A T]) which was engaged in property and investment
and she was responsible for providing consultation services in

Tianjin Jiandu Investment & Development Co. Ltd. (

project financing, cooperation in public affairs and international
investment matters. From May 2003 to August 2007, Ms. Zhao
also provided consultation services in finance and investment
related matters to Tianjin Wanhe Investment & Development Co.
Ltd. (REEFKE R B A7) which was engaged in property
and investment. From July 2001 to October 2003, Ms. Zhao was
appointed the general manager of the audit department of China
Citic Bank, Tianjin branch and was responsible for managing
the overall performance of the audit department, implementing
policies and procedures and other management work. Ms. Zhao
has over 22 years of experience in accounting and auditing
matters including but not limited to financial analysis, financial
management, asset management, assessment and auditing of
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financial positions and involvement in financial and auditing
decision making process. Ms. Zhao completed the course in
economics and management organised by the Party School of
Central Committee of the Communist Party of China (FF R E
) in December 1996. Ms. Zhao further completed the course
in business administration organised by Nankai University (&
FAE) in September 1999 and obtained her master’s degree
in arts in international relations in economy and trade from The
Flinders University of South Australia in October 2002. Ms. Zhao
was assessed and awarded the qualification of accountant by
the Tianjin branch of the Bank of China in 1992. Ms. Zhao was
appointed as a Director on 15 April 2011.

Mr. Cornelis Jacobus KEYSER, aged 57, first joined the Group
in December 2003 as a senior consultant. In June 2005, he
was appointed as the joint Group managing director (group
operations and treasury) and managing director (designate
proposed banking division) and held that position until he
left the Group in April 2008. Since March 2003, Mr. Keyser
has been a director of Keyser Merchant & Capital Finance
(New Zealand) Limited which is engaged in the provision of
consultation services and he is responsible for managing all
aspects of such company and acts as a consultant. From July
1999 to August 2002, Mr. Keyser held the position of group
treasurer to Gensec Ltd. and Gensec Bank. From September
1996 to March 1997, Mr. Keyser worked at the Swabou Building
Society Group of Companies as the group managing director
and was responsible for the operations of the group. From May
1990 to August 1992, Mr. Keyser was appointed the managing
director of Keyser Trading (Pty) Limited and from September
1992 to June 1999, he was appointed the managing director of
Keyser Merchant and Capital Finance (Pty) Limited. Mr. Keyser
is @ member of the Institute of Directors in New Zealand Inc.
Mr. Keyser has over 22 years of experience in the financial
industry. Mr. Keyser obtained his bachelor’s degree in industrial
psychology, his honours degree in economics and his master’s
degree in economics from the Rand Afrikaans University in April
1981, April 1982 and April 1983, respectively. Mr. Keyser was
appointed as a Director on 15 April 2011.
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Mr. LIN Wenhui (M2 55 4), aged 37, joined the Group in July
2011. Mr. Lin has been an audit manager of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu in Beijing since September 2011. With effect from
1 July 2014, Mr. Lin is temporarily transferred to the Board of
Supervisors of SAC in the State Council for the inspection of
enterprises directly under the central government. From April
2009 to September 2011, Mr. Lin was a manager of RSM China
Certified Public Accountants (FInEZESHAIEFT). Mr. Lin
served as a project manager in the taxation and accounting
services department of Reanda Certified Public Accountants (7
LiESMESTEREE AT from September 2004 to March
2006 and a manager assistant in the audit department of the
same firm from April 2006 to December 2008. From August 2002
to September 2004, Mr. Lin worked in the accounting department
of the head company of the Beijing Shougang Oxygen Plant
(dtmEERM) which was engaged in the production and
sales of oxygen and other gases for industrial enterprises.
Mr. Lin obtained his bachelor's degree in accounting from the
Harbin University of Commerce (FMaBREREZFEARZ) in July 2002.
Mr. Lin obtained his certificate of accounting professional from
the Finance Bureau of Beijing (AtRWEE/E) in June 2003
and passed the PRC’s national accounting examinations and
was awarded the certificate issued by the Committee of the
Registered Accountant Examination of the Ministry of Finance
(BB M E TR EZ S Z 2 €) in April 2005. Mr. Lin has been a
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
recognised by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC (fF# AR AN
B 81 ER) since April 2008. Mr. Lin was appointed as a Director
on 16 July 2011.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. WONG Yiu Kit, Ernest (2% 5 4) is the Chief Financial
Officer and the Company Secretary of the Company. Mr.
Wong has extensive experience in venture capital, corporate
finance, business development, legal, IT, financial and general
management. Mr. Wong is now the President and Group Chief
Financial Officer of KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited. Previously he
was the Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of China
Private Equity Investment Holdings Limited which is listed on
London AIM market. He was in charge of the private equity
investment, portfolio management, corporate finance activities
including fund raising and initial public offering, financial
management, legal services, IT and company secretarial
work. Before that, Mr. Wong was the Chief Financial Officer
for Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology Research
Institute Company Limited (“ASTRI”) and held management
responsibilities for its overall financial, legal, IT, business
development and corporate finance functions. Before joining
ASTRI, Mr. Wong was the vice president for Vertex Management
Pte Ltd (now known as Vertex Venture Holdings Ltd), focusing
in venture investment in communications, IT and electronics
sectors. Previously, he also held management positions at
Guangdong Investment Ltd., Transpac Capital Limited and
Accenture.

Mr. Wong earned his Bachelor of Business Administration
degree from the University of Hong Kong, received his Master
of Science in investment management from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and Master of Science
in Electronic Engineering from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, United Kingdom; and is an associate
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. He is also a charter-holder of Chartered Financial
Analyst, United States of America and a member of the Hong
Kong Security Institute.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND COMPANY SECRETARY

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. ZHANG Rongjun (5R&FZ+) is the regional financial
controller of New Zealand and Australia of the Group. Ms. Zhang
joined the Group in December 2002 as the financial controller.
Ms. Zhang has also been a director of KVB NZ since May
2009. From December 1997 to July 2002, Ms. Zhang served
as a senior accountant at HWI Limited Chartered Accountants
and was responsible for preparing financial statements and
tax returns and providing tax advice. Ms. Zhang has over 16
years of experience in accounting matters in New Zealand. Ms.
Zhang obtained her bachelor’s degree in accounting from the
Unitec Institute of Technology in April 2000. Ms. Zhang has
been a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of New
Zealand since January 2002.

Mr. HUANG Songyuan (MRt 4) is the director of global
margin business. Mr. Huang is also responsible for the
management of investment business of the Group, including
foreign exchange, commodities and equities business. He is
currently one of the responsible officers of KVB HK and KVB AU,
and a director and managing principal of KVB NZ. Mr. Huang
joined the Group in August 2002 as an executive accountant
of KVB NZ and was responsible for general accounting duties,
book-keeping and financial reports. Mr. Huang was the manager
of treasury strategy of KVB NZ and was responsible for the
implementation of its dealing system and the day-to-day running
of its global forex dealing operations and all its associated
financial management. Mr. Huang obtained his bachelor’s
degree in accounting from the Sun Yat-Sen University (7 1L KE2)
in June 1999, his master’s degree in international business from
the Auckland Institute of Studies at St. Helens, New Zealand in
December 2000 and his graduate diploma in commerce from
the University of Auckland in May 2002. Mr. Huang became a
chartered financial analyst of the CFA Institute in September
2006.
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EH - R BLE R AR E

Mr. SO Chi Hang Stephen (358 5¢4E) is the head of investment
of KVB AU. Mr. So joined the Group in May 2003 as a senior
sales executive of margin forex of KVB AU. He has been the
Responsible Manager (RM) of the Australian Financial Services
License (AFSL) for the company since then. Mr. So is at present
a director of KVB AU. Before joining the Group, Mr. So worked
at The Hong Kong Chinese Bank, Limited and Lippo Securities
Holdings Limited from March 1994 to December 2002 and was
responsible for providing investment advice and dealing with
private clients and retail clients, first as a senior investment
consultant in The Hong Kong Chinese Bank, Limited and
thereafter as a senior manager of the global investment division
of Lippo Securities Holdings Limited. Mr. So has over 18 years
of experience in advising clients on financial products ranging
from securities, indices and stock futures and options to other
financial products. Mr. So obtained his bachelor of arts degree
from the University of Sydney, Australia in April 1992. Mr. So
also obtained the diploma in financial services issued by the
Australian Financial Markets Association in 2003.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

KVB Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed to high standards
of corporate governance in the interest of its shareholders. It
has continued and will continue to identify and adopt the best
corporate governance practices appropriate to the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in the Appendix 15
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “GEM Listing Rules”).

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company adopted the required standard of dealings as set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code
of conduct regarding securities transactions in securities of the
Company by the directors of the Company (the “Directors”).

Having made specific enquiry with the Directors, all the Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard of
dealings during the year ended 31 December 2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) is responsible for the
formulation of strategies and policies, including an oversight
of the management. The management of the Company is
responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Company under
the leadership of the chief executive officer.

As at 31 December 2014, the Board comprised seven Directors,
including (i) two executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Stefan (as
chief executive officer) and Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick; (ii) two
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Zhi Da and Mr. Stephen
Gregory McCoy; and (iii) three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Zhao Guixin, Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser
and Mr. Lin Wenhui. One of the independent non-executive
Director, namely Mr. Lin Wenhui, has appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

ESEE IR

EmERemEERRAR ([ARF] EZRAE
MEARSHE [ AKE]) BANSRENDEE
VAT & BRER A& o AN B A 1 7 2R 38 7 1 E
REBUBEE AR BN RESEEARA

EERTA
“E-EFEFT_A=T—HLFE  ARQF

BEETEEMAXIMARARAIFRES LT

=) BIEMR EMARA) M5B EERER

AT
s (TR 8957 RIMES -
ESETHRSRS

ARBERAHIINAIZER EHRAES 481GE
5E7TIHMRENRHEAMERARRIES (EF))
EITRRBESFZHHTTRTRI

RASEFFLARENE  EESHER X
ERBE-Z—NF+-A=+—HILFEEE
STRTRE 2 R SR o

Exg

AAREFE (EHR) ARHTFAANK
HRRE  REETEEENIE- ETHeR
NBAT  AAAERERAAAAANARE
Eo

R-ZZE—NF+-_A=+—H EFLHTRE
FHK BREOMBITESRMALE (17
Baag) REREEREL (IMEBIERTESSE
7 %4 K Stephen Gregory McCoy%t 4 + &
(i =R\ IERITEEHERZ L L - Cornelis
Jacobus Keyserfe £ RSB E - HAR—EE
VHRTEEMXBEEREEEEEER - X
S EEAEEENG -

23



KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED [ iy [20 [ <& fil 4 B A7 PR A W)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
R

Each executive Director has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a specific term, and his term of office is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company and the GEM
Listing Rules. For all non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, the term of them has been fixed at 3
years and is also subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
in accordance with the articles of association of the Company
and the GEM Listing Rules.

In determining the independence of independent non-executive
Directors, the Board has followed the requirements set out in
the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has received from each of
the independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Based on such confirmation, the Company is of the view
that all the independent non-executive Directors have met the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules and considers that they are independent.

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognises and embraces the benefits of
diversity in the boardroom. The Board has therefore adopted
a board diversity policy which stated that the Board sees
diversity as a wide concept and believes that a diversity of
perspectives can be achieved through consideration of a
number of factors, including but not limited to skills, regional
and industry experience, background, race, gender and other
qualities. In informing its perspective on diversity, the Company
will also take into account factors based on its own business
model and specific needs from time to time.

The Company endeavours to ensure that the Board has the
appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives that are required to support the execution of its
business strategy and in order for the Board to be effective.

Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
Board believes that such merit-based appointments will best
enable the Company to serve its clients, shareholders and other
stakeholders going forward.
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Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The chairman of
the Board is responsible for the leadership and effective running
of the Board, and for ensuring that all key and appropriate issues
are discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner,
while the chief executive officer of the Company, supported
by other members of the Board and the senior management,
is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group’s
business, including the implementation of major strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Group. As at 31 December 2014,
the roles of the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer are by Mr. Li Zhi Da, a non-executive Director, and Mr.
Liu Stefan, an executive Director, respectively.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, at
each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for
the time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. A circular which
includes the biographical details of the retiring Directors who
stand for re-election together with the notice of annual general
meeting of the Company will be despatched to the shareholders
of the Company in due course.

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year of
approximately quarterly intervals. Between scheduled meetings,
senior management of the Company from time to time meets with
Directors to discuss the businesses of the Group. In addition,
Directors have full access to information on the Group and
independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary
by the Directors.
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During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board held six #HEZE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE EFg
board meetings and the Company held one general meeting, HEBITTRNAEEEEH @ AARRTT —AR
and the attendance records of these meetings are set out below: RAE @ ZES@ZHBOEFEFOT
Attendance Attendance
(for Board (for general
meetings) meetings)
HiE HE
(E=ggER) (BRRXE)
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Liu Stefan RRFE LA 6/6 11
Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick SHEAEE 6/6 1/1
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Li Zhi Da FEERE 4/6 1/1
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy Stephen Gregory McCoy st 4 6/6 11
Independent non-executive Directors B IEHITESE
Ms. Zhao Guixin izEEL S 5/6 1/1
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyserft & 6/6 1/1
Mr. Lin Wenhui MBS A& 5/6 1/1

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
material/relevant relationship(s)) among members of the Board.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as to ensure
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
The Company should be responsible for arranging and funding
suitable training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Director.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has
arranged an in-house seminar for the Directors on the topics
of (i) Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report; and (ii) Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide. All Directors had attended this seminar.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 18 December 2012 in compliance
with Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules. Written terms of
reference in compliance with paragraph B.1.2 of the Code
has been adopted. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to evaluate the performance and determine
the remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group, and evaluate the performance
and make recommendations on any other employee benefit
arrangement. At present, the Remuneration Committee consists
of three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Zhao
Guixin, Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser and Mr. Lin Wenhui. Ms.
Zhao Guixin is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Remuneration
Committee held two meetings. Details of the attendance of the
Remuneration Committee meeting during the year ended 31
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December 2014 are set out below: DK
Attendance
HE
Ms. Zhao Guixin (Chairman) HEELT (£E) 2/2
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst 4 2/2
Mr. Lin Wenhui M IS HE 2/2

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Remuneration
Committee has considered and recommended to the Board (i)
the granting of share options to Directors and other eligible
participants under the share option scheme of the Company
adopted by the shareholders pursuant to a written resolution
dated 3 June 2013; and (ii) the salary increment for the executive
directors and the senior management of the Company in 2014.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 18 December 2012. Written terms
of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5.2 of the Code has
been adopted. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee
are to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
on a regular basis and make recommendations to the Board
regarding nomination of suitable candidate to fill vacancies in
the Board. At present, the Nomination Committee consists of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Zhao
Guixin, Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser and Mr. Lin Wenhui. Ms.
Zhao Guixin is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Nomination BEZZT—HF+_A=+—HIEFE  REZ

Committee held one meeting. Details of the attendance of the BE&8R{TT — A8 - REZE TR TFELE
Nomination Committee meeting are set out below: FEHIT ¢

Attendance

HE

Ms. Zhao Guixin (Chairman) HEELZT (£EF) 11

Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst 4 1/1

Mr. Lin Wenhui MBS &
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Nomination
Committee has considered and reviewed the policy for the
nomination of Directors, the process and criteria to select
and recommend candidates for directorship. The Nomination
Committee recommended the Board to approve the proposed
sequence for re-election of retiring Directors in 2015 annual
general meeting. The Nomination Committee considers that the
existing policy for nomination, selection and recommendation
for directorship are suitable.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established a corporate governance committee
(the “CG Committee”) on 18 December 2012. Written terms of
reference in compliance with paragraph D.3.1 of the Code has
been adopted. The primary duties of the CG Committee are to
develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendation to the Board.
At present, the CG Committee consists of four members, namely
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser, Mr. Liu Stefan, Ms. Zhao Guixin
and Mr. Lin Wenhui. Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser is the chairman
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of the CG Committee. All members are independent non- LRI BAERABNITESRITIEAE, -
executive Directors, except Mr. Liu Stefan, who is an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company.
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the CG Committee EHZE_ZT—MMFE+_A E+—E|JJ:¢§ TEE
held two meetings. Details of the attendance of the CG JAZE@BITTMASRE CEERZECEH
Committee meeting are set out below: BRI

Attendance

HE

Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser (Chairman) Cornelis Jacobus Keyserft 4 (F/&) 2/2
Mr. Liu Stefan 2R A 2/2
Ms. Zhao Guixin HEERLL 1/2
Mr. Lin Wenhui M E LA 2/2
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the CG Committee Ejz?t T—NMFEF+-_A=+—HILFE  EE

has considered and reviewed the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance. The CG Committee
discussed the corporate governance model for the Company,
recommended the framework of corporate governance of
the Group and the role of the company secretary. The CG
Committee has considered and recommended to the Board
the Approval Framework which provides a formal schedule of
matters specifically reserved for board approval and delegation
of management and administration functions to the management.
The CG Committee considers that the existing policies and
practices of corporate governance of the Company are suitable.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 19 December 2012 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the requirements as set out in Rule
5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and internal control system of the Company, nominate
and monitor external auditors and provide advice and comments
to the Directors.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lin Wenhui, Ms. Zhao Guixin
and Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser. Mr. Lin Wenhui is the chairman
of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has met the external auditor of the Group
to review the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters including the review of this report and financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee
held four meetings. The attendance records of the Audit
Committee meetings during the year ended 31 December 2014
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are set out below: N
Attendance
R
Mr. Lin Wenhui (Chairman) MIESRE (F/E) 4/4
Ms. Zhao Guixin HEERZ T 3/4
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst 4 4/4

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee
reviewed with the management and the auditors of the Company
their audit findings, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Company, legal and regulatory compliance, and
financial reporting matters.

The audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2014 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors ensure the financial statements of the Group are
prepared in accordance with the statutory requirement and
applicable accounting standards.

The Directors’ responsibilities in the preparation of the financial
statements and the auditor’s responsibilities are set out in the
section headed “Independent auditor’s report” of this report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment,
maintenance and review of the Group’s system of internal
control.

The Board has conducted a review of the system of internal
control of the Group, and made suggestions to improve the
system. The Board was satisfied that the internal control system
of the Group, after implementing the suggested improvements,
would be effective.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The audit works of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014 were performed by PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”).

The total fee paid/payable in respect of the statutory audit and
non-audit services provided by PwC is set out in the following
table:
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BB B BN &
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FLEE K BOKE A BAE Bz M IR R R A RS
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2014 2013

=F-OF —T=%

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHBT FHETT

— Audit services — BAZARTE 2,648 2,150

— Non-audit services — IEEZ RS 180 -

Total 4B EE 2,828 2,150
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COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary. The Company Secretary reports to the
Chairman on board governance matters, and is responsible for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and for facilitating
communications among Directors as well as with Shareholders
and management.

During the year, the Company Secretary undertook over 15
hours of professional training in compliance with Rule 5.15 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the
Company, any one or more shareholders of the Company
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

In the event that any shareholders of the Company holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company would like to call for an
extraordinary general meeting, please make a written requisition
to the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong from time
to time, making attention to “The Board of Directors and the
Company Secretary”.
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There are no provisions allowing shareholders to put forward
proposals at the general meetings under the memorandum
and articles of association. If shareholders wish to do so, they
may request to convene an extraordinary general meeting as
stipulated above and specify the proposals in such written
requisition.

For any enquiries, shareholders are welcome to contact the
Company by post to the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong, by phone at (852) 3120 8888 by fax at (852) 3120 8800.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

All corporate communication materials published on the GEM
website (http://www.hkgem.com) are posted on the Company’s
corporate website (http://www.kvblistco.com) as soon as
practicable after their release. The Company’s constitutional
documents are also available on both websites. During the year
ended 31 December 2014, there have not been any significant
changes to the Company’s constitutional documents.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of KVB
Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”,
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is pleased to present its report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2014.

together with

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
December 2014 by business and geographical segments are set
out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL RESULTS

The annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014 are set out in the section headed “Consolidated statement
of comprehensive income” of this report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out
in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in Note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the year
under review are set out in the section headed “Consolidated
statement of changes in equity” of this report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float during the
year ended 31 December 2014.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds
in the share premium account and retained earnings of the
Company are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
subject to the provisions of the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company and provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

As at 31 December 2014, in the opinion of the Directors, the
Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
was approximately HK$177 million (2013: HK$168 million).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year, the aggregate percentage of purchases attributable
to the Group’s five largest suppliers is approximately 24.61%
of the total purchases of the Group and the largest supplier
included therein amounted to approximately 6.62%.

For the year, the aggregate percentage of sales attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
15.0% of the total sales of the Group and the largest customer
included therein amounted to approximately 5.9%.

At no time during the year have the Directors, chief executive,
substantial shareholders of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or their associates (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 —Z&— 44

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
B

REHRARFRE

ARBPRBE_ZT-—NF+_A=+—HIFE
—HAERRHNRHRE -

A 2 Tk A

RIEMEFEREE - ARAREN & ERMR
BaEMNzES A BRIKETARRBR - AR
SARBZRAFAMEEABERMAZRE - A
EREBZRRERSBHRE  ARFERREH
B ERETEEHBIET Z2BER -

“E-NF+-_A=1+—H8 BEFERE AR
AR R T IR 2 FEE49177,000,0008 7T (=
T —=% : 168,000,000/ 7T) °

IREFRHER

FRAEBZAAHEBRKBABLHASE
EREBEL2461%  MEFRARERFELD
6.62% °

TR AEEZAATF ZHEEABENAESHE
ERTEL15.0%  MEFEAEFEH5.9% -

REREMER > AARXETAHNBARIZE
E IETBAER FERRIEBEZBHEA
(AESAARAARBBRAL%NA LE) BER
Bt B2ER R EHHEA E s

35



KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED [ iy [20 [ <& fil 4 B A7 PR A W)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
L

DIVIDEND

On 10 November 2014, the Board has resolved to pay an interim
dividend of 2014 of HK0.675 cents per ordinary share and
distributed to the shareholders on 26 November 2014. A total of
HK$13,500,000 was paid to the then shareholders.

The Board recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK1.075 cents per ordinary share to the shareholders. The final
dividend, if approved by the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on Wednesday, 6 May 2015,
will be paid on Thursday, 21 May 2015 to the shareholders
whose name appear on the register of members of the Company
on Thursday, 14 May 2015.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme for the year
ended 31 December 2014 are set out in Note 2.16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2014 is disclosed in Note
27 to the consolidated financial statements. Certain of these
transactions also constitute continuing connected transactions
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “GEM Listing Rules”), as
identified below.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 11
June 2013 (the “Prospectus”), the Company has entered into
a shared services agreement on 18 December 2012 and a
supplemental agreement on 3 June 2013 (together, the “Shared
Services Agreement”) with KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited (“KVB
Holdings”, together with its subsidiaries which do not belong
to the Group, the “Non-Listed Group”), pursuant to which the
Company has agreed to provide or procure the subsidiaries
of the Company to provide group management, information
technology, marketing and administration support services to
the Non-Listed Group subject to the terms and conditions of
the Shared Services Agreement. The proposed cap amounts of
the fees to be received by the Group under the Shared Services
Agreement for each of the three years ended 31 December 2013
and 31 December 2014, and ending 31 December 2015 are
HK$2,905,000, HK$3,050,000 and HK$3,203,000 respectively.
Such transactions are subject to reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements.

Moreover, as disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company have
entered into the following transactions which are subject to
the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ requirements:

(i) the Company has entered into an office licence
agreement on 18 December 2012 and a supplemental
agreement dated 3 June 2013 (together, the “Office
Licence Agreement”) with KVB Holdings, pursuant to
which the Company has agreed to provide or procure
the subsidiaries of the Company to provide the sharing
of the offices to the Non-Listed Group subject to the
terms and conditions of the Office Licence Agreement.
The proposed cap amounts of the fees to be received
by the Group under the Office Licence Agreement for
each of the three years ended 31 December 2013 and
31 December 2014, and ending 31 December 2015 are
HK$11.4 million, HK$11.9 million and HK$12.5 million,
respectively; and
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(ii) the Company has entered into cash dealing agreement on
18 December 2012 and a supplemental agreement dated
3 June 2013 (together, the “Cash Dealing Agreement”)
with KVB FX Limited (“KVB FX”), KVB FX Pty Limited
(“KVB FX Pty”) and KVB Kunlun Canada Inc. (“KVB CA"),
being members of the Non-Listed Group. Pursuant to the
Cash Dealing Agreement, KVB NZ has agreed to provide
the cash dealing services to each of KVB FX, KVB FX Pty
and KVB CA, subject to the terms and conditions of the
Cash Dealing Agreement. The proposed cap amounts
of the aggregate trading volume of KVB FX, KVB FX
Pty and KVB CA under the Cash Dealing Agreement
for each of the three years ended 31 December 2013
and 31 December 2014, and ending 31 December 2015
are US$2.9 billion, US$2.9 billion and US$2.9 billion,
respectively.

Further details in relation to the Shared Services Agreement, the
Office Licence Agreement and the Cash Dealing Agreement are
set out in the Prospectus.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 29
January 2014, the Company and Banclogix System Co., Limited
entered into an information technology services agreement
(“Information Technology Services Agreement”) in respect of
transaction relating to the provision of software development
and maintenance services, IT infrastructure project management
and maintenance services, and IT risk assessment services
to the Group. The proposed annual caps for the transactions
contemplated under the Information Technology Services
Agreement for each of (i) the period from the date of agreement
on 29 January 2014 to 31 December 2014; and (ii) for the year
ending 31 December 2015 are HK$5,000,000 and HK$5,500,000,
respectively.

38

(i) ARRHEIELEWEBEKE QA (AKVB
FX Limited ([KVB FXJ) » KVB FX Pty
Limited ([KVB FX Pty]) &KVB Kunlun
Canada Inc. ([KVBII 2 K]) R =& —
ZHE+ AT NRTUBRERZHHEER
—E-=FXA-HITLHERHZE (FTE
[REXHH#E]) BEREXHHH -
KVBAAHE R ERRER HHE 2GR
RAGHRMIR SR H AR TKVB FX « KVB
FX PtyRKVBIZEKX - BHEZT—=F1
ZA=t+—HB - ZE—HNF+=ZHA=+—
BRk-_E—AFE+_-_A=+—AL=fEF
EZEE » KVB FX » KVB FX Pty &XKVBAH
EARBAERIMEE T 2BRREZE
FEREREORIB29EET  29EELK
29f8&TT °

BERXEREWHE  ROERHFERZEIRER
S g 2 — PR BHNBRER

BOARR AT —NF—A=Z+NABZ
NEFTHEE - A2 F HBanclogix System Co.,
Limitedh A1 2N £ 42 it 80 (4 5 3 R 4 s AR 75 -
BHESEREEEEREERS REMBHEER
b ST AR 7S] L BB Rk ([ BFARHEAR
BiaEl) - EARMERBHREE THETI SR
()BHZEAH—_E—NF—A=+NhBE=ZT—
ME+—A=+t—HLHHE: k(i/BE-FT—H
FHTZA=+—BLEFEZEZFELRD AR
5,000,000/ 7T &5,500,0007% 7T °



All independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions
have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
they are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
(as appropriate) independent third parties; and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Directors also confirm that the Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group in this section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” above in accordance with Rule 20.38 of the GEM
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided
by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2014 and up to the date of
this report, the Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Stefan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Zhi Da (Chairman)
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhao Guixin
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser
Mr. Lin Wenhui

The biographical details of the Directors as at the date of
this report are set out in the section of “Directors and senior
management” of this report.

RETIREMENT OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with article 84(1) of the articles of association
of the Company, Mr. Liu Stefan, Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick
and Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy shall retire from office and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract
with any member of the Group which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2014, save as disclosed below, none of
the Directors and chief executive has any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)
which are required to be (i) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which he is taken
or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO);
or (i) entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules:
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is entitled to control over one-third of the voting power at general
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On 29 January 2015, KVB Holdings and CITIC Securities
Company Limited (“CITIC Securities”) entered into a conditional
share purchase agreement (the “Share Purchase Agreement”) in
relation to the sale and purchase of 1,200,000,000 shares in the
Company. As a result of the entering into of the Share Purchase
Agreement, as at 29 January 2015, CITIC Securities is deemed
to be interested in 1,200,000,000 shares in the Company under
the SFO.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to the Directors as at 31 December 2014, the
following persons had an interest or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register

FERR
BERMRA N2

—mE+-—A=+—H "M
TATRAREZRM AR P B BT
IR FH & HI S K0 5336 1K AT 17 2 B 52 fit

required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO: R BRE
Approximate
percentage of
Number of issued share
Name Capacity shares held capital
&8 87 FRRHSE HFERITRE
BAEH
Shares Options Total
) BiRE Bt
KVB Holdings (Note 1) Beneficial owner 1,500,000,000 - 1,500,000,000 75.00
KVB Holdings (#7z1) EREBA 1,500,000,000 - 1,500,000,000 75.00
Calypso International Investment Beneficial owner 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.33
Co., Limited (Note 2)
Calypso International Investment ERBEEA 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.33
Co., Limited (#7:22)
HNA Group (International) Company Interest in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.33
Limited (B &R (ER)ER R F) corporation
(Note 2)
BHERE (BR) BRAR (Hit2) REEHEE 2 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.33
HNA Group Co., Ltd. Interest in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.33
(BMEBARLE) (Note 2) corporation
BREBEERAR (Hit2) RREHER 2 e 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.33
Yangpu Jianyun Investment Co., Ltd. Interest in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.33
(EHEEREBRDRA) (Note 2) corporation
FRREREBRAR (i) RREHER 2 B 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.33
Hainan Traffic Administration Holding Interest in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.33
Co., Ltd. (BEREEREBAF) corporation
(Note 2)
BERERRERAR (Hit2) REZHEE 2 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.33
Shengtang Development (Yangpu) Interest in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.33
Co. Ltd. (REBR(FH)BRAF) corporation
(Note 2)
RERR (F8) BRAR (Hit2) RREHER 2 5 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.33
Labour Union of Hainan Airlines Interest in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.33
Co., Ltd. (BEMZERHEBRAF corporation
Iéééﬁ)WMea
BEMERNERATIZZES WREHER 2 5 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.33
(/5/75%2)
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Notes:

1. Mr. Li, a non-executive Director, was entitled to control over one-
third of the voting power at general meetings of KVB Holdings.
On 29 January 2015, KVB Holdings and CITIC Securities entered
into the Share Purchase Agreement in relation to the sale and
purchase of 1,200,000,000 shares in the Company. As a result
of the entering into of the Share Purchase Agreement, as at 29
January 2015, CITIC Securities is deemed to be interested in
1,200,000,000 shares in the Company under the SFO.

2. As confirmed by Calypso International Investment Co., Limited,
as at 31 December 2014, Calypso International Investment
Co., Limited was a wholly owned subsidiary of HNA Group
(International) Company Limited (/G5B (EIE)E R 2 &)
(formerly known as HNA Group International Headquarter (Hong
Kong) Co., Limited (V&1 EEI 42 55( 2 %) B IR 2 7])), which was
in turn owned as to 91.09% by HNA Group Co., Ltd. (jGAi%E
HBIR 22 5]). HNA Group Co., Ltd. was held as to 30% by Yangpu
Jianyun Investment Co., Ltd. (¥ #EEREBRLF]) and 70% by
Hainan Traffic Administration Holding Co., Ltd. (@ X BB IR
23 A|]). Hainan Traffic Administration Holding Co., Ltd. was in turn
held as to 50% by Shengtang Development (Yangpu) Co., Ltd.
(B R (F/H) B IR A]). Shengtang Development (Yangpu) Co.,
Ltd. was held as to 65% by the Labour Union of Hainan Airlines
Co., Ltd. (BRMZERGERAFIEEZE D).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the Directors
are not aware of any other person who has an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares (including interest
in options, if any) of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing connected
transactions” above, no contract of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which any member of the Group was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
ended 31 December 2014.
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Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing connected
transactions” above, no contract of significance (including
provision of services) between the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, and a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries subsisted during the year ended 31 December
2014.

DIRECTORS’ COMPETING INTERESTS

During the period under review, none of the Directors or their
respective associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules)
had any business or interest in a business which competes or
may compete with the business of the Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

For the purpose of the listing of the Company, each of KVB
Holdings and Mr. Li,
entered into a deed of non-competition dated 18 December 2012

being a non-executive Director, have
and the supplemental deed dated 3 June 2013 (collectively, the
“Deed of Non-competition”) in favour of the Company, further
details of which are disclosed in the Prospectus.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Deed of Non-competition by KVB Holdings
and Mr. Li during the year under review, and are satisfied that
Deed of Non-competition have been complied with by KVB
Holdings and Mr. Li during the year under review.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
on 3 June 2013.

(a) Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is for the Group to attract,
retain and motivate talented Participants (as defined
below) to strive for future developments and expansion
of the Group.

(b) Participants of the Scheme

Under the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, invite
the following persons as participants (the “Participants”)
of the Scheme:
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(i) any executive or non-executive Director including
any independent non-executive Director or any
employee (whether full-time or part-time) of any
member of the Group;

(i) any trustee of a trust (whether family, discretionary
or otherwise) whose beneficiaries or objects
include any employee or business associate of
the Group;

(iii)  any consultant (in the areas of legal, technical,
financial or corporate management) and other
adviser to any member of the Group;

(iv) any provider of goods and/or services to the
Group; or

(v) any other person whom the Board considers, in its
sole discretion, has contributed to the Group.

In determining the basis of eligibility of each Participant,
the Board would take into account such factors as the
Board may at its discretion consider appropriate.

Basis for determining the subscription price and
acceptance of offer

The subscription price for the shares under the Share
Option Scheme shall be a price determined by the
Board at its sole discretion and notified to the Participant
and shall be no less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date on which an option is
granted; (ii) the average closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date on
which an option is granted; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Share.

Offer of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted
by the grantee when the duplicate of the relevant offer
letter comprising acceptance of the option duly signed
by the grantee together with a remittance in favour of
the Company of HK$1.00 (or such other nominal sum
in any currency as the Board may determine) by way of
consideration for the grant.

(c)
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(d)

(e)

()
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Maximum numbers available for issue

The total number of shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
adoption date (the “General Scheme Limit”) unless further
shareholders’ approval is obtained in general meeting,
provided that options lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme will not be counted for the purpose
of calculating the General Scheme Limit.

Notwithstanding the foregoing the total number of shares
of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the shares of
the Company in issue from time to time.

Maximum entitiement of each Participant

For each Participant, the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted and
further to be granted in any 12-month period (including
both exercised and outstanding options) and in the
12-month period up to and including the acceptance
date (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) shall not in isolation or aggregate exceed 1% of
the shares, and any grant of option which would result
in such limit being exceeded shall be approved by the
Company in general meeting with such Participant and
any associate thereof abstaining from voting.

Time of exercise of the option

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time
during the period commencing on the first business day
from the date of grant of option and expiring at the close
of business on a date to be determined and notified by
the Directors which shall not be more than 10 years from
the date of grant of option.

Unless the Directors otherwise determined and stated
at the time of granting the option, there is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised.
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(g) Remaining life of the Scheme

The Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years
commencing on 3 July 2013 to offer the grant of an option
to any qualifying participants.

(h) Movements of the options granted under the Scheme

On 10 January 2014, the Company granted share
options to 68 individuals to subscribe for an aggregate
of 40,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the
share capital of the Company. Among the 40,000,000
share options granted, 14,920,000 share options were
granted to six Directors. Details of the movements of the
options granted under the Scheme are set out in Note 24
to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none
of the Directors, chief executive, substantial shareholders
of the Company or their respective associates (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules) had any right to subscribe
for the shares of the Company under the Scheme.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 29 January 2015, the controlling shareholder of the Company
(the “Vendor”) and CITIC Securities Company Limited (“CITIC
Securities”) entered into a conditional share purchase agreement
(the “Share Purchase Agreement”) in relation to the sale and
purchase of 1,200,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each in the share
capital of the Company owned by the Vendor (each a “Sale
Share”), pursuant to which CITIC Securities conditionally agreed
to acquire and the Vendor conditionally agreed to sell the Sale
Shares, for a total consideration of HK$780,000,000, equivalent
to HK$0.65 per Sale Share. The Sale Shares represent 60% of
the then entire issued share capital of the Company. Completion
of the Share Purchase Agreement (“Completion”) is expected to
take place upon fulfilment of the conditions set out in the Share
Purchase Agreement.
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Immediately after the Completion, CITIC Securities will become
the owner of the Sale Shares, representing 60% of the total
issued share capital of the Company (assuming no further
change to the issued share capital of the Company), and
accordingly, CITIC Securities will be required to make an
unconditional mandatory general cash offer at the price of
HK$0.65 per share (“Share Offer Price”), which is the same as
the purchase price of each Sale Share, for all the issued shares
of the Company (other than those already owned or agreed to
be acquired by CITIC Securities and parties acting in concert
with it) upon Completion (the “Share Offer”), and an offer for the
cancellation of all the outstanding options under Rules 26.1 and
13.5 of the Takeovers Code (the “Option Offer”, together with
the “Share Offer” referred to as the “Offers”). CITIC Securities
Corporate Finance (HK) Limited will be making the Offers for
and on behalf of CITIC Securities. Pursuant to a non-acceptance
undertaking given by the Vendor to CITIC Securities pursuant
to the Share Purchase Agreement, the Vendor will not accept
the offer for 300,000,000 Shares held by the Vendor under the
Share Offer.

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting date
are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2014, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last four financial years is set out in the section
headed “Financial summary” of this report.

COMPLIANCE ADVISER’S INTEREST

In accordance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed Quam Capital Limited to be the
compliance adviser. Pursuant to Rule 6A.23 of the GEM Listing
Rules, the compliance adviser will advise the Company in the
following circumstances:

(a) before the publication of any regulatory announcement,
circular or financial report;

(b) where a transaction, which might be a notifiable or
connected transaction, is contemplated including share
issues and share repurchases;

(c) where the Company proposes to use the proceeds of
the placing in a manner different from that detailed
in the Prospectus or where the business activities,
developments or results of the Company deviate from
any information in the Prospectus; and

(d) where the Stock Exchange makes an inquiry of the
Company regarding unusual movements in the price or
trading volume of the shares of the Company or any other
matters under Rule 17.11 of the GEM Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2014, as notified by Quam Capital Limited,
neither Quam Capital Limited nor any of its directors, employees
or associates (as referred to in Note 3 to Rule 6A.31 of the GEM
Listing Rules) had any interest in the securities of the Company.
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Pursuant to the compliance adviser agreement dated 6 June
2013 entered into between the Company and Quam Capital
Limited, Quam Capital Limited has received and shall receive
monthly service fee for acting as the Company’s retained
compliance adviser for the period from 3 July 2013, being the
date of listing of the shares of the Company on GEM, to the date
on which the Company complies with Rule 18.03 of the GEM
Listing Rules in respect of its financial results for the second
full financial year commencing after the date of its initial listing.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to HK$33,990 (2013: HK$136,000).

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-appointment.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 4 May 2015 to Wednesday, 6 May 2015, both days
inclusive, during the period no transfers of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attending
and voting at the 2015 Annual General Meeting, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Union Registrars Limited, at A18/F., Asia Orient
Tower, Town Place, 33 Lockhart Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
for registration by no later than 4:00 p.m. on Thursday, 30 April
2015.
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The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 12 May 2015 to Thursday, 14 May 2015, both days
inclusive, during the period no transfers of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for the final
dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Union Registrars Limited, at
A18/F., Asia Orient Tower, Town Place, 33 Lockhart Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration by no later than 4:00 p.m.
on Monday, 11 May 2015.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Stefan

Chief executive officer and executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2015
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
EREREREBEFRAA

(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
KVB Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 147,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets
as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’'s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

RA WA 7R
For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z—NOF+-_A=+—HILFE
2014 2013
—E-ImF —F-=F
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
it THET FBTT
Leveraged foreign exchange AR ZIMNE K EAth 22 5 A
and other trading income 5 144,207 135,543
Cash dealing income BE X H5WA 5 16,636 11,505
Other income Hipg A 6 27,791 29,671
Total income g A 42 %8 188,634 176,719
Fees and commission expenses ZEARASEX 61,127 57,768
Staff costs 8 TR 7 36,545 30,819
Depreciation and amortisation e ey 3,138 2,550
Lease payments under land T REFHHE R
and buildings 6,462 5,873
Administrative and other THEREMEERS
operating expenses 8 33,645 29,456
Total expenses Sz 42 %8 140,917 126,466
Operating profit 4R B | 47,717 50,253
Finance cost BhE K AN (20) (123)
Profit before tax bR % Ba A 47,697 50,130
Income tax expense FriS %t i =2 9 (12,616) (15,356)
Profit for the year FEEA 35,081 34,774

The notes on pages 62 to 147 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e AL

For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE_Z-MOF+_A=1+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-ImF —F-=F
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Kzt FHET FHIT
Other comprehensive income Ha 2w
Item that may be reclassified to  BJfEEFH P IEE 18252 TH
profit or loss
Currency translation difference HMIEH =58 (5,296) (1,764)
Other comprehensive income FEEMEENRE (FBREIE)
for the year, net of tax (5,296) (1,764)
Total comprehensive income FEEEMEETE
for the year 29,785 33,010
Earnings per share for profit FREAREIRERE ARG
attributable to the equity holders %72 SRR EFI
of the Company for the year
- Basic (HK cents per share) — BER (ASBRBILZIR) 11 1.75 1.90
- Diluted (HK cents per share) — 85 (AZIRABWAIR) 11 1.75 1.90
Dividends iz B 10 35,000 39,500

The notes on pages 62 to 147 form part of these consolidated  #62F 147 B KIS G S I TBHREN —EH -
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

f A B ER AR

As at 31 December 2014
RZZE—WHF+=A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-ImF —F-=F
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
orza THERT FBTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - RENMERE 12 7,062 6,301
Intangible assets B EE 13 5,083 257
Deferred tax assets RIETRIAE B 19 947 413
13,092 6,971
Current assets REEE
Tax prepayments TEFIRIE - 567
Other assets and prepayments Eﬁﬂé?&iﬁﬁm 14 6,590 4,973
Amounts due from ultimate JE U B AR AR %
holding company 27 - 23
Amounts due from fellow JE Uk [B] 2B B A Bl 5k38
subsidiaries 27 - 75
Derivative financial instruments PTESBMT A 15 55,544 56,594
Balances due from agents FEURIE 4S5 16 12,099 16,910
Cash and bank balances and R MIRTTAER A K
client trust bank balances REEHRITERS 17 539,185 483,880
Total current assets REBEEAE 613,418 563,022
Total assets EEH#E 626,510 569,993
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BRERAE
Share capital R& 7 22 20,000 20,000
Reserves G 342,746 343,703
Retained earnings 1R B F 29,977 18,396
Total equity R 392,723 382,099

The notes on pages 62 to 147 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AR EARE

As at 31 December 2014
RZZE—WmFE+=—A=+—H

2014 2013
—F-mE —F=F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FER FA&T
Current liabilities RBEE
Finance lease obligations BhE &R 18 41 45
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFTIS i & fE 7,358 3,068
Other payables and accrued HEibENFIERERAE
liabilities 20 17,158 12,189
Amounts due to fellow NGB S ENGIE e
subsidiaries 27 488 312
Derivative financial instruments TESRT A 15 4,662 2,579
Clients’ balances KR #EH 21 203,874 169,426
233,581 187,619
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Finance lease obligations A &R 18 73 126
Deferred tax liabilities EERIE B & 19 133 149
206 275
Total liabilities =Rtk 233,787 187,894
Total equity and liabilities HERRERE 626,510 569,993
Net current assets REBEEFE 379,837 375,403
Total assets less current MEERRBAR
liabilities 392,929 382,374

Approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on
31 March 2015

Director

EZE

The notes on pages 62 to 147 form part of these consolidated
financial statements.

ER_ZE-—hF=—A=1tT—HEESFSHERK

RETIE

Director

EF

FE2E147T BN BB TS RETA—2 5 -
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BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY

AEIEERAER

As at 31 December 2014
RZZE—WHF+=A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-MF —F—=
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
orza THERT FBTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ERB AR ZEE 26 8,109 1
8,109 1
Current assets hEEE
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHERR 139,663 123,745
Amounts due from a subsidiary JEUR — B B A Bl 2 A 27 64,653 65,907
Amounts due from ultimate FEUR S 44 % A B FUE
holding company 27 - 12
Prepayments AN 611 675
Total current assets RBEERAE 204,927 190,339
Total assets EEHE 213,036 190,340
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Share capital R 2R 22 20,000 20,000
Reserves s 171,378 166,928
Retained earnings {REB & A 6,028 1,335
Total equity ERBE 197,406 188,263
Current liabilities wREEaE
Amounts due to subsidiaries R NGB 27 13,901 663
Other payables and accrued HEMERNFIERETAE
liabilities 20 1,729 1,414
Total liabilities =Rt b 15,630 2,077
Total equity and liabilities HEEREE 213,036 190,340
Net current assets REBEEFE 189,297 188,262
Total assets less current BEERRBERS
liabilities 197,406 188,263

The notes on pages 62 to 147 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
5 s Y

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-N&E+_A=1+—HLEFE

Retained
Share  Currency earnings/
Share Share Capital option translation (accumulated Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses) equity
REEH/
k& ROEE EAEE BRERE SYERRE (RRER)  BREE
Note  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$°000
i AR TER TAR AR TER TER TAR
At 1 January 2013 R-E-=£-f-H 100 56,991 171,892 6,647 (2878) 232,752
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Profit for the year EERT = - - - - 34,774 34,774
Other comprehensive income ~ EE A #2EN
for the year - - - - (1,764) - (1,764)
100 56,991 171,892 - 4,883 31,896 265,762
Capitalisation issue BAET 2 16,467 (16,467) - - - - -
Placing of new shares RENR 22 3,433 151,758 - - - - 165,191
Shares issue expenses RirgaRZ = (9,354) = = = = (9,354)
Dividends ke 10 - (16,000) - - - (13500)  (29,500)
Balance at 31 December 2013 W=ZE-=f+_#
St-R&H 20000 166,928 171,892 - 4,883 18,396 382,099
At 1 January 2014 R=E-NE-A-H 20,000 166,928 171,892 - 4,883 18,396 382,099
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year EERF - - - - - 35,081 35,081
Other comprehensive income  FEEM2ENE
for the year - - - - (5,296) - (5,296)
20,000 166,928 171,892 - (413) 53477 411,884
Share option scheme G HE] 24 - - - 4,339 - - 4,339
Dividends e 10 - - - - - (23,5000  (23,500)
Balance at 31 December 2014 R=ZE-ME+=f
=t+-R&H 20,000 166,928 171,892 4,339 (413) 29977 392,723

The notes on pages 62 to 147 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH
AR T

FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE_ZMOF+_A=1+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E2-mEF —E—=F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HiEt THER TET
Cash flows from operating activities R& EZEFIERLKE
Profit before tax BR B0 A A 47,697 50,130
Adjustments for: FHEE
Depreciation and amortisation ER#HY 12&13 3,138 2,550
Interest income F B A (1,811) (1,525)
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HEEE & ER RS - (19)
Share option expenses ERERY 4 4,339 -
Cash flows from operating activities % E& & # EHI KL TH
before working capital changes FBRERE 53,363 51,136
Decrease/(increase) in pledged BEMTEBRETRLD /(M)
time deposits 2,800 (28,506)
Increase in client trust bank balances & FE{Z:LiR1T4 AN (25,058) (68,217)
Decrease/(increase) in balances due FEURRIBAEERR L/ (3EhN)
from agents 4,811 (2,873)
Decrease/(increase) in derivative TESRI AR /(58 m)
financial instruments 3,133 (24,622)
(Increase)/decrease in other assets ~ HM&E RBEMZHRIE (321n0),/ H>
and prepayments (1,755) 3,836
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due  EGZAIER A RZIER D /(3L A0)
from ultimate holding company 23 (3,706)
Decrease in amounts due from fellow  FEU [ Z [T B A Bz IR 2
subsidiaries 75 126
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due  FE R RMB AT ZEZ M,/ CFid)
to fellow subsidiaries 176 (386)
Increase in clients balances BEEHIENN 34,448 21,836
Increase/(decrease) in other payables H fth fE{ F/I8 &
and accrued liabilities EEFaEEm  CRd) 4,969 (3,058)
Cash generated from/(used in) KRR/ (A Be
operations 76,965 (39,434)
Income tax paid BEFTER (7,654) (11,493)
Net cash generated from/(used in) KESEEE () RE %8
operating activities 69,311 (50,927)

The notes on pages 62 to 147 form
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HEBERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z-MOF+_A=1+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E2-MNEFE —T—=F
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
Kz FTERx FHIT
Cash flows from investing activities REFZEHFEREARE
Interest received REV GRS 1,969 1,316
Purchase of property, plant and BEVE BEMREURENEE
equipment and intangible assets 12&13 (8,756) (2,978)
Proceeds from disposal of plant and  HERKE RBERSHIE
equipment - 19
Net cash used in investing activities  #R&EEFMAE %5 (6,787) (1,643)
Cash flows from financing activities BEEZEfERLKRE
Net proceeds from issue of shares B BEATENS 5 F 58 22 - 155,192
Payment of transaction costs BATHRAD BIE R B A 53X
attributable to issue of new shares - (9,354)
Repayment of finance lease EEREHERE
obligations (57) (94)
Dividends paid BERE 10 (23,500) (29,500)
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEED (FTA),/ FEHEFE
financing activities (23,557) 116,244
Net increase in cash and cash RERBEEEYEMFEHE
equivalents 38,967 63,674
Cash and cash equivalents at FRE KR EEY
beginning of year 310,675 248,650
Effect of foreign exchange rate b R B By 5 2 H AR
changes, net (5,920) (1,649)
Cash and cash equivalents at ERESREEEEY
end of year 17 343,722 310,675

The notes on pages 62 to 147 form part of these consolidated — F62E 147 B M sH A AR A BTSRRI — 20D
financial statements.
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I\JLOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.1

General information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 9 November 2010 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of
its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands.

The Company’s shares have been listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 3 July 2013.

The Company is an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
provision of leveraged foreign exchange and other
trading, cash dealing business, and other service.

The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the HKICPA. The consolidated financial
statements has been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
financial assets and liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss,
which carried at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared
in accordance with the applicable requirements of
predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for
this financial year and the comparative period.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial information are disclosed in Note 4.

Unless otherwise stated herein, all references to
2014 refer to the Group’s fiscal year ended, or the
date, as the context requires, 31 December 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

Newly effective standards and amended
standards for the financial year from 1
January 2014 that is applicable to the
Group

to HKAS 32,
Presentation’

Amendment ‘Financial

instruments: on offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities.
This amendment clarifies that the right of
set-off must not be contingent on a future
event. It must also be legally enforceable
for all counterparties in the normal course of
business, as well as in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy. The amendment
also considers settlement mechanisms. The
amendment did not have a significant effect
on the group financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 36,
of assets’,

‘Impairment
on the recoverable amount
disclosures for non-financial assets. This
amendment addresses the disclosure of
information about the recoverable amount
of impaired assets if that amount is based
on fair value less costs of disposal. The
amendment did not have a significant effect
on the group financial statements as the
recoverable amounts are determined by
value in use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

Newly effective standards and amended
standards for the financial year from 1
January 2014 that is applicable to the
Group (continued)

HK(IFRIC) 21, ‘Levies’, sets out the
accounting for an obligation to pay a levy if
that liability is within the scope of HKAS 37
‘Provisions’. The interpretation addresses
what the obligating event is that gives rise
to the payment a levy and when a liability
should be recognised. The Group is not
currently subjected to significant levies so
the impact on the Group is not material.

Other
interpretations which are effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2014
are not material to the Group.

standards, amendments and

fok o B 5 A M
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I\JLOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

The following new standards and
amendments to standards have been
issued but are not effective for the
financial year ended 31 December 2014
which are relevant to the Group but the
Group has not early adopted

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, addresses
the classification, measurement and
recognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities. The complete version of HKFRS
9 was issued in July 2014. It replaces
the guidance in HKAS 39 that relates to
the classification and measurement of
financial instruments. HKFRS 9 retains but
simplifies the mixed measurement model
and establishes three primary measurement
categories for financial assets: amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income and fair value through profit of loss.
The basis of classification depends on the
entity’s business model and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial
asset. Investments in equity instruments
are required to be measured at fair value
through profit or loss with the irrevocable
option at inception to present changes in
fair value in other comprehensive income
not recycling. There is now a new expected
credit losses model that replaces the
incurred loss impairment model used in
HKAS 39. For financial liabilities there
were no changes to classification and
measurement except for the recognition
of changes in own credit risk in other
comprehensive income, for liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or
loss. HKFRS 9 relaxes the requirements
for hedge effectiveness by replacing the
bright line hedge effectiveness tests. It
requires an economic relationship between
the hedged item and hedging instrument
and for the ‘hedged ratio’ to be the same
as the one management actually use for risk
management purposes. Contemporaneous
documentation is still required but is
different to that currently prepared under
HKAS 39. The standard is effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018. Early adoption is permitted. It
is expected that the adoption of this revised
standard will not have a significant impact
on the Group’s results of operations and its
financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

The following new standards and
amendments to standards have been
issued but are not effective for the
financial year ended 31 December 2014
which are relevant to the Group but the
Group has not early adopted (continued)

HKFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with
customers’ deals with revenue recognition
and establishes principles for reporting
useful information to users of financial
statements about the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows arising from an entity’s contracts with
customers. Revenue is recognised when
a customer obtains control of a good or
service and thus has the ability to direct the
use and obtain the benefits from the good
or service. The standard replaces HKAS
18 ‘Revenue’ and HKAS 11 ‘Construction
contracts’ and related interpretations. The
standard is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017 and
earlier application is permitted. The group is
assessing the impact of HKFRS 15.

Other HKFRSs that are applicable for the financial

year beginning on or after 1 January 2014 have no

significant impact on the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method
of accounting to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date.
On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
the Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

EESTBEME (&)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued) 22 MBLAT(£)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued) 2.2.1 A6 (&)

At the Company’s single entity level
balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries
are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in
consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also
includes direct attributable costs of
investment.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If this is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the statement of comprehensive
income. The Group determines at each
reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in
the subsidiaries is impaired. If this is the
case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount
in the statement of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

RARBE-—BEBNEESR
BERTE - RHE AT
B RRARREAR » A&
REERAELAE - AR
R AR EBETAMEENR
B - RATBERE
BERBIERA -

PRERAE - RBRET S
EAIIREF RS BIAR
PR U8 B 7 B (£ 1] 56 i A i
RUERRN A EBBA
5 B R Ah P URBE AT BB F B
EAAENZRINERE -
SREBEMS  HXER
ERABANBARNFEE
EAAE MEREZEK
DARTHEREHER - A&
BN & | E B REE XM B
RARE IR EN T
EE-WERENETEE
B AKEAERESES
B X B A U (B 2R L HL AR
HEENEZRE  ITREHEK
SmREREETHE -

NEIRANR 5 - REQEIRE
MR P RER R R EHR W T
AT 3H - REIREIB I T LA
B - B AR EETBE

EREEEF (HFR) AW
R BN 5% [ R AN Y BUR AR —
B o

69



KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED  E f [0 B 4 il 45 [ 45 BR 2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok B S 25 R M

2

70

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

2.3

Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
a dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision maker. The chief
operating decision maker is the person or group
that allocates resources to and assesses the
performance of the operating segments of an
entity. The Group has determined the Board of
Directors as its chief operating decision maker.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”).

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in HK$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions or valuation where items
are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

2
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all

the Group entities (none of which has the

currency of a hyperinflationary economy)

that have a functional currency different from

the presentation currency are translated into

the presentation currency as follows:

(i)

(iiif)

assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

income and expenses for each
consolidated statements of
comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated

at the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or are recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
itemm can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold 10 years or over the
improvements lease term, whichever
is shorter
Computer equipment 3 to 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 5 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date. Assets that are subject
to depreciation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An asset’s carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if
the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These
are included in ‘other income’ in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment if any.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are amortised over the useful
economic life (3 to 5 years) and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is
reviewed at least at each balance sheet date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’'s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Financial assets
2.8.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following categories: financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and loans
and receivables. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets
held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are
also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if it holds
the asset primarily for the purpose of
trading; otherwise, they are classified
as non-current.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They
are included in current assets, except
for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12
months after the balance sheet date.
These are classified as non-current
assets.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

76

2.8.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date —
the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of the “financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss” category are included directly in
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and are reported as “leveraged
foreign exchange and other trading income”
in the period in which they arise. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or where the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.

Loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method less impairment if any. The Group’s
receivables (including amounts due from
group companies) and “cash and cash
equivalents” fall under this category.
Accounts receivables and amounts due
from group companies are measured
subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method. Interest
on loans is included in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income and
is reported as net interest income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Financial assets (continued)
2.8.3 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset
and the net amount reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company
or the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet
date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset classified as loans and receivables
is impaired. A financial asset is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinqguency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

29

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using
observable market data.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Derivative financial instruments

The Group classifies derivatives as financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss at inception. These financial assets and
financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
by the Board of Directors.

Financial assets or financial liabilities held for
trading are those acquired or incurred principally
for the purposes of selling or repurchasing in
the short term. The Group does not classify any
derivatives as hedges in a hedging relationship.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at their fair value.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value are recognised in the “leveraged foreign
exchange and other trading income” in the period
in which they arise.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, bank deposits
with original maturities of three months or less, and
bank overdrafts.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash and cash equivalents available for the
disposition of the Group and exclude client trust
bank balances, and bank deposits held to secure
the banking facilities granted to the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

Rental, utility and other deposits

Rental, utility and other deposits held on a long
term basis are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less impairment if any.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the liabilities are due to be settled or
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least 12 months after the balance
sheet date.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including other payables
are recognised initially at fair value net of
transaction costs incurred. Financial liabilities
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between proceeds net of transaction
costs and the redemption value is recognised
in the profit or loss over the period of the other
financial liabilities using the effective interest
method. Financial liabilities are derecognised when
they are extinguished — that is, when the obligation
is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

EESTBEME (&)

2.15 Provision 2.15 #&145

A provision is recognised when a present
obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as
a result of a past event and it is probable that a
future outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. When
the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Employee benefits

(a)

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme (the “Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the

rules of the Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary,
which operates in New Zealand, are eligible
to participate in KiwiSaver plan on a
voluntary basis. This subsidiary is required
to contribute certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the fund only if employees
are making contribution to KiwiSaver plan.
The contributions are charged to the
profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the fund.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary,
which operates in Australia, are required
to participate in employee superannuation
fund. This subsidiary is required to
contribute certain percentage of its payroll
costs to the fund. The contributions are
charged to the profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the
fund.

The assets of the Scheme and other plans
as described above are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the Scheme and other
plans.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

(c)

Employee level entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they are accrued to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees
up to the balance sheet date.

Bonus

The Group recognises a liability and an
expense for bonuses, in which the bonus
scheme is at the discretion of the Group’s
Directors based on the Group performance
that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the Group after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

2.17 Share-based payment transactions

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates a share option scheme
for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions,
whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments
(“equity-settled transactions”).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined with
reference to the fair value estimated by
external valuer under a valuation model
commonly used in the market.

In valuing equity-settled transactions,
no account is taken of any performance
conditions, other than conditions linked to
the price of the shares of the Company
(“market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is
recognised, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the year in which the
service conditions are fulfilled, ending on
the date on which the relevant employees
become fully entitled to the award (the
“vesting date”). The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions
at each balance sheet date until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting
year has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the income statement for a year
represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that year.

When the options are exercised, the
company issues new shares. The proceeds
received net of any directly transaction
costs are credited to share capital.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Share-based payment transactions (continued)

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award
are modified, as a minimum an expense
is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified. In addition, an expense
is recognised for any modification, which
increases the total fair value of the share-
based payment arrangement, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at
the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled,
it is treated as if it had vested on the date
of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and
is designated as a replacement award on
the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were
a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is
reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of earnings per share.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17

2.18

2.19

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

(b) Share-based payment transaction among
group entities

The grant by the Company of options over
its equity instruments to the employees
of subsidiary undertakings in the Group
is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair
value, is recognised over the vesting periods
an increase to investment in subsidiaries
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the parent entity accounts.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividend on ordinary shares is recognised as a
liability in the consolidated financial statements
in the period in which it is approved by the
shareholders or directors where appropriate.

Income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit
of loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Income tax (continued)

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Group’s
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
position taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised in full,
using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary difference can be
utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Income tax (continued)
(b) Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net
basis.

2.20 Goods and Services Tax (“GST”)

The financial statements have been prepared so
that expenses/costs are stated inclusive of GST,
where appropriate. The Group is not a registered
person in term of the Goods and Services Tax Act
1985 in New Zealand.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21

2.22

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue can be measured reliably, on
the following bases:

(i) fees and commission income, when the
services have been rendered;

(i) management fees income, when the

services have been rendered; and

(iii)  interest income, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying
the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Cash dealing income

Unleveraged cash dealing services are provided
to corporate clients, in particular, those clients
engaged in money changing business for the
purpose of hedging their cash positions and
meeting settlement obligations. The Group is
rewarded by the spread between the price quoted
to our clients and the price offered by our market
makers. Cash dealing income is recognised when
cash dealing transactions have been completed
by market makers with reference to prevailing
exchange rate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor), are charged to the profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and
equipment where the Group has substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized
at the lease’s inception at the lower of the fair value
of the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.

The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in finance lease
obligation. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance charges. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in non-current liabilities.
The interest element of the finance cost is charged
to the profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.
The property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is inherent in the financial service business and
sound risk management is a cornerstone of prudent and
successful financial practice. The Group acknowledges
that a balance must be achieved between risks, control
and business growth. The principal financial risks inherent
in the Group’s business are credit risk, market risk
(including interest rate risk and foreign currency risk)
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
objective is to enhance shareholder value while retaining
exposure within acceptable thresholds in response
to changes in markets. The Group has a robust risk
management system in place to identify, analyse, assess
and manage risks.

The Group’s risk management is carried out by the Group
Risk Department under policies approved by the Group
audit, risk and compliance committee. The Group Risk
Department provides written principles for overall risk
management, as well as written policies covering specific
areas, such as mitigating credit risk, market risk, liquidity
risk, capital management risk and risk limits setting and
monitoring.

The policies for managing each of these risks are
summarised below:
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. The Group is exposed
to credit risk from accounts receivable from
customers and counterparties, bank balances,
and other assets and receivables. After evaluating
the client’s risk profiles, the Group sets stop-out
levels to the clients. Once their equity drops to
the stop-out level the Group’s trading system
will automatically liquidate the client’'s positions.
Without taking into account any collateral held or
other credit enhancements, the maximum exposure
to credit risk is the carrying amounts of these
assets. The existing debtors have no defaults in
the past.

The Group’s bank deposits are held with banks
and balances due from agents are held with major
financial institutions and management reviews the
banks and financial institutions’ creditworthiness on
a regular basis. The banks and financial institutions
are of high credit quality and substantially with
a rating of grade A or with long established
relationships. The credit risk associated with these
balances is deemed insignificant.

The Group is also subject to credit risk relating
to other assets and receivables from ultimate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries. The
credit risk relating to other assets and receivables
from ultimate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries is treated as any other receivables
in the normal course of business. The utilisation
of credit limits has been closely monitored on
a daily basis, taking into account the financial
position and past experience. The Group did not
experience any losses from non-performance by
these counterparties. The credit risk associated
with these balances is considered as low.
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3.1 Credit risk (continued)

(a)

fok o B 5 A M

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SRRAMER (£)
31 FERR (&)
Maximum exposure to credit risk (a) KEERMBXEMEEEH
before collateral held or other credit MRS EEREE
enhancements
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit MR SEFRENGEERE
risk in the event the counterparties fail THEME  AASBEMER
to perform their obligations as at the HWEXESREERBNR
balance sheet date, in relation to each SEERRERGEEESR
class of financial assets, is the carrying BERAMTZEEENRE
amount of those assets as indicated in B - ZEeRBLAEERT
the consolidated balance sheet. These E—MOFERZT—=F+=
amounts represent the worst case scenario A=+—HFEBHNEER
of credit risk exposure to the Group at 31 BEREBRE - BRI RE
December 2014 and 2013, without taking A TR 19 G S P P Eo At (5
into account any collateral held or other ERABER -
credit enhancements attached.
The carrying values of receivables and other 7R R B 75 R FR EE A Y
assets arising from the course of business FEWRIE R H A B ERREE
of the Group are as follows: s
The Group EE
2014 2013
—E-mF —EF—=
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Other assets Hith&E 5,269 3,420
Amounts due from ultimate JFE U B A% 52 A FIE
holding company - 23
Amounts due from fellow JE Uk [B] 2B B A Bl 538
subsidiaries - 75
Derivative financial instruments T4 &g T A 55,544 56,594
Balances due from agents FEIRIB 4S5 12,099 16,910
Cash and bank balances and e RIBITEBRURE P
client trust bank balances EFEIRTTAS 539,185 483,880
612,097 560,902
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

3

TRERE

B (#E)

31 FERR (&)

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the (b)) RZTE—MOEFER_FT—=%F
maximum exposure of credit risk of the +=ZA=+—H ' ARFRIA
Company comprises the carrying amounts AR &= EERREERE
of amounts due from ultimate holding Wk IR A B8 - UK
company, amounts due from subsidiary and M B A R RIE R AREE R A
cash and bank balances on the balance ARABEEBRRMENE
sheets of the Company. MERTTHERR ©
None of the financial assets is either past (c) WESHEEDHNRE -
due or impaired.
The following table breaks down the Group’s (d) TRUBREEMAD REEH
major credit exposure at their carrying FEFERR  WEEZEZ
amounts, as categorised by geographical T—MOER_T—=F+=
region as of 31 December 2014 and 2013. A=T—BXH#HEREZS
The Group has allocated exposures to e A"EEBEBEERZIEHF
regions based on the country of domicile of B BT 1E BY 5K 5 B /2 B %iﬁl
its counterparties. Credit risk exposure by B ZRHESHEER
geographical sectors is classified according et R EERR ?é&ﬁ&%ﬂ
to the location of counterparties after taking FRIEMTADHE o
into account the transfer of risk.
The Group REE
As at 31 December 2014 N-—ZE—MNE+—-A=+—H
Asia
Pacific
excluding Europe
Hong Hong and other
Kong Kong regions Total
TAHE
(Faf BN R
EB %) Httne Mgt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
FET TR TR TR
Other assets HEE 2,713 2,556 - 5,269
Derivative financial instruments  #T4£ 4@ I A - 55,544 - 55,544
Balances due from agents N GeEE - 12,099 - 12,099
Cash and bank balances and Be RBITESRIK
client trust bank balances RPETRTER 244815 227,890 66,480 539,185
Total st 247,528 298,089 66,480 612,097
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 cREAKRER (&)
3.1 Credit risk (continued) 31 fEERR (£)
(d) (continued) (d) (4&)
As at 31 December 2013 R=T—=F+=-F=+—H
Asia
Pacific
excluding Europe
Hong Hong  and other
Kong Kong regions Total
DA
(B BN &
B AB) HiuwR ®ar
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Other assets Hin & 2,659 761 - 3,420
Amounts due from ultimate e e S NS E
holding company - 23 - 23
Amounts due from fellow L GES NG
subsidiaries 75 - - 75
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4 4RI A - 56,594 - 56,594
Balances due from agents JEURA I8 A 5 = 16,910 = 16,910
Cash and bank balances and Be RRITEBUR
client trust bank balances RPETRITES 218,999 195,226 69,655 483,880
Total T 221,733 269,514 69,655 560,902

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the
Company’s major credit exposure is within
Hong Kong region, except for the amounts
due from a subsidiary which were within
Asia Pacific Region.

RZZBE—NFR_ZT—=
+=—A=+—H KEKES

A3 [ A ) — R BT B 2 15K

R REBBIE
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

Market risk

3.2.1 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from movements
in interest rates and the mismatch of fixed
and floating rates between funding and
investing activities. The Group is exposed
to material interest rate risk as the Group
invests all surplus funds in call accounts
with reputable banks and is susceptible to
movements in call interest rates. Interest
rate risk arises from unexpected changes in
interest rates that may result in an adverse
impact on the Group’s current and near
future performance. The Group has not used
any interest rate swaps nor forward interest
rate contracts to hedge its exposure to
interest rate risk.

The Group
As at 31 December 2014

3

TRERE

B (#E)

3.2 AR
3.2.1 FIEEMRE

) == & b TH B R R B A K&
SEHEEFHENEE R
BRI EAEELATE o BBRR
AEEBEMERBERRE
REBRIFRITHBANES
I 52 38 FAF R R OR B ) 52
2. W$%.@ﬁiﬁﬂm
o FIE R R B F Ea
E‘ﬁh/)ﬁi@J R EEIEHAE
B RE T ARBEEED
FE o  AEEWARMAE
{a] 1) 2= 422 B sl 3R R 2R 5 4
HmHE R E @

AEE
R-ZE—NmNFE+=-A=+—H

Floating Fixed Non-
interest interest interest
rate rate bearing Total
FBRE  EHEAE %5 @zt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
THT THT THT TER
Assets EE
Other assets HEE - - 5,269 5,269
Derivative financial instruments 74 4@ TE - - 55,544 55,544
Balances due from agents FEM B A5 1,754 - 10,345 12,099
Cash and bank balances and Re RFTEBUR
client trust bank balances RPERRITER 438,613 92,094 8,478 539,185
Liabilities =0
Finance lease obligation BEHERE - 114 - 114
Other payables H i FIE - - 14,253 14,253
Amounts due to fellow ENRZNBARNE
subsidiaries - - 488 488
Derivative financial instruments 144 @ T A - - 4,662 4,662
Clients’ balances RR&ER - - 203874 203,874
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Market risk (continued)

The Group
As at 31 December 2013

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2.1 Interest rate risk (continued)

3

TRERE

fok o B 5 A M

B (#E)

3.2 WA (&)
3.2.1 FxEE (&)

FEE
R-ZT—=F+=-A=+—H

Floating Fixed Non-
interest interest interest
rate rate bearing Total
FBNE  EEME FE Bar
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR THT TR
Assets BE
Other assets HwEE - - 3,420 3,420
Amounts due from ultimate JEM S R R A B HUR
holding company - - 23 23
Amounts dug from fellow L GEEIEINGIESE
subsidiaries - - 75 75
Derivative financial instruments ~ #$74 4@ T A = = 56,594 56,594
Balances due from agents FEU I £ 1,100 - 15,810 16,910
Cash and bank balances and R RRTHEBIAR
client trust bank balances RPERTER 316,700 157,046 10,134 483,880

Liabilities

Finance lease obligation

Other payables

Amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries

Derivative financial instruments

Clients’ balances

8
BEHEARE

A it TR
,MHR/%WE’AET%XIE

frEemIA
BP#&H

Based on the simulations performed and

with other variables held constant, the

profit before taxation for the year ended 31

December 2014 would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$4,404,000 (2013:
HK$3,178,000) should the interest rate

increase/decrease by 1%.

171 = 171
- 10,278 10,278

= 312 312
= 2,579 2,579
= 169,426 169,426

RIE AR %«%iﬁﬁﬁE{ﬂsz

=ERFIAEE - YR 2 42
=/ %1% lJ%zif e
—NFE+ZA=+—HLF
S O B A5 AT 2 H%im/;ﬁg
> 494,404,000% T (= &

— =% : 3,178,000/ T) °
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

Market risk (continued)

3.2.2 Foreign currency risk

Exchange rate fluctuation is the most
significant risk in leveraged foreign
exchange trading. The Group takes on
exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the
prevailing foreign currency exchange rates
on its financial position and cash flows. The
Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to New Zealand
dollars and Australian dollars. The Group will
suffer a loss if it fails to cover a client deal at
a better exchange rate. The Group monitors
foreign exchange exposure by reviewing
the open position of the Group and client
trading performance. The risk is measured
by the use of sensitivity analysis and cash
flow forecasting. Specific risk limits are set
to measure and monitor foreign exchange
risk. Any excessive foreign exchange risks
are passed on to other financial institutions
through execution of trades with those
institutions. The management sets limits on
the level of exposure by currency and in
aggregate for both overnight and intra-day
positions, which are monitored on an intra-
day basis.

3

BE (&)

3.2 WA (&)
3.2.2 JERE

R HERAINER F
hEREANER - KEEK
Eﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ&iﬁi//wglg%
Iy BE R 8 v BT AEIR
PR - REBEAXLAGA
WL RRTTRE 2 REIME
Rk o AR BARERE
EXETELPRS  BIBR
REX - AEEBEBBEER
SENARTFREANEEPR
ZHRIFEFEIMNE R - E R
TyBBN AU ST RN
EREERNEH EETE
E-HEA ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂ?ﬂ%ﬂr%
Ko BS 122 51N BE LB o fEAd]
Eﬁ?l\EﬂA@'JLﬂEﬁiEﬁﬁ
TRBBETRSEBREZ
FHE - EEEUREEA
EI%?EM&%@%E?)’T%FE’J
K TFPRERTE - RNER
EﬁF‘sﬁW%LA%ﬁ%‘\ :
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SRRAMER (£)
3.2  Market risk (continued) 3.2 WHEARK (&)
3.2.2 Foreign currency risk (continued) 3.22 JERE (&)

The tables below summarise the Group’s THRBARERN T — Y
exposure to foreign currency exchange FERZZE—=F+ZH=+
rate risk as at 31 December 2014 and —HEBEMNINERP - X
2013. Included in the tables are the assets A LA T F R R E B 51 AR
and liabilities at carrying amounts in HK$ TRREEDBENEERE
equivalent, categorised by the original f& °
currency.
As at 31 December 2014 R=ZF-—MOF+=H=+—H

HK$ NZD AUD usb JPY CNY  Others Total
Gy T A e HE  ARY B h
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TEn TEr TEn THn TER TEn TEx

The Group F5E
Assets BE
Other assets EfpEE 2,708 3 530 43 - 198 - 5209
Derivative financial instruments fT4 £ BT & - 171,230 11,307 26,553 - - 454 55544
Balances due from agents  JEMA B 3 33 5% 10,380 570 - 540 12,009
Cash and bank balances and 58 RETESUR

client trust bank balances BREASTESR 125929 30,812 54,552 309,400 2,657 14,488 1,347 539,185
Liabilities &
Finance lease obligation HEREAE - - 114 - - - - 114
Other payables ElERTE 4,396 991 1,366 7,500 - - - 14253
Amounts due to fellow ERRZNELZE

subsidiaries - - - 488 - - - 488
Derivative financial instruments {74 £8TA - 1,460 758 2,449 - - - 4662
Clients” balances RPiH - 10,686 40,224 152,831 133 - - 203,874
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3.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 TREREE (&)
Market risk (continued) 3.2 WHEARK (&)
3.2.2 Foreign currency risk (continued) 322 SEREE (&)
As at 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=A=+—H
HKS NZD AUD ush JPY CNY  Others Total
il AT e HE  ARK At it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
Tér Thr Thr TEx  TEx  TExr  TEr  TEn
The Group piS-|
Assets BE
Other assets AfEE 2636 67 362 2 - - 32 3420
Amounts due from ultimate el R AR A RFUE
holding company - - - 23 - - - 23
Amounts due from fellow EYRAZNELAFE
subsidiaries - - - 75 - - - 75
Derivative financial instruments {74 2R T A - 2133 6,207 29,064 - - - 56,5%
Balances due from agents EURELER 1 6 33 15809 165 - 56 16910
Cash and bank balances and B2 RBIEBILE
client trust bank balances PEIRIEH 141986 22511 35806 264,076 4439 475 14587 483,880
Liabilities af
Finance lease obligation REREAR - - 171 - - - - 171
Other payables HthERZE 309 1307 489 5447 - - 6 10278
Amounts due to fellow ERFZNBARE
subsidiaries - - - 312 - - - 312
Derivative financial instruments  §T44 BT A - 1801 100 678 - - - 2579
Clients’ balances Epka - 12983 22586 133,706 151 - - 169,426
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

3.3

3

TRERER (&)

Market risk (continued) 3.2 TmWiEARk (&)
3.2.2 Foreign currency risk (continued) 3.22 JERE (&)
The following table indicates the impact TRINRRZ-ZE—MFERZ
on the Group’s profit before taxation to T—=F+_A=+—8%
movements in foreign exchange rate as at e e < 5% B 39 7N &< [ Bk B A
31 December 2014 and 2013: B E
Movement
in foreign
currency 2014 2013
Foreign currency risk S BE L Bz HIERE —T-—NmHE =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FABT
AUD RIT +/-5% +/-1,223 +/-954
JPY q +/-5% +/-155 +/-222
NZD AP T +/-5% +/-1,749 +/-1,391
CNY AR¥E +/-5% +/-822 +/-24
Liquidity risk 3.3 REMEE

The Group’s operations are subject to various
statutory liquidity requirements as prescribed
by the relevant authorities. The Group has put
in place a monitoring system to ensure that it
maintains adequate liquid capital to fund its
business commitments and to comply with the
regulatory requirements. The liquidity risk of the
Group is managed by regularly monitoring current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and current
working capital to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term. The Group holds
sufficient cash and deposits on demand to repay
its liabilities.

AEENEHEREERBRENS
BEAERBDESERAMR - AEH
ERVEERS  BEERTHE
MEBES RAREMNRBAERME
B RETERER - AKEE
BEMEZRRLBERRDESR
RKERERBIERR - BENEH
HRRANRSHERENZESR
EAmEREHRLERARHESE
Ko AEERARRNAS MEH

FREEEEE-
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3.3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 TRERERE (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) 3.3 FHEHERAR (&)
3.3.1 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual 331 BEXNIHHEZH KB
maturities BEmE
The table below presents the cash flows THREINAREBR _ZF—Y
payable by the Group under financial FER-_T—=Ft+"A=+
liabilities by remaining contractual maturities —HAEHTEAIHERE
as at 31 December 2014 and 2013. The BMEEETHREMNE SR
amounts disclosed in the table are the o RRAEENSEAS
contractual undiscounted cash flows. HRAEFERE o
As at 31 December 2014 R-ZE-—NFE+=-A=+—H
Upto 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over
1month  months months years  Syears Indefinite Total
-BAk -2=fif ZEt-@R -28E @IE  ERY @it
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000
T TEn Tén  TExr  FEn TR TEx
The Group r&E
Liabilities B
Finance lease obligation HEMEAE 4 9 34 3 - - 120
Other payables Hth R 11,759 1,020 1474 - - - 14253
Amount due to fellow ERRZNBARZFE
subsidiaries 488 - - - - - 488
Clients’ balances KPR 203,874 - - - - - 203,874
6125 1,02 1,508 7 - - 28T
Derivative financial instruments 47428 TE 4,662 - - - - - 4,662
20787 1,029 1,508 73 - - 223307
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 cREAKRER (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) 3.3 HEHERAR (&)
3.3.1 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual 331 BEXNIHHEZH KB
maturities (continued) BLmE (&)
As at 31 December 2013 W_E—=F+"H=+—H
Upto 1-3 312 1-5 QOver
Tmonth  months months years  Syears  Indefinite Total
—-fAR -2=fR zEt-fAf -Z1f ki3 ERE a5t
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
T Thr Thr Thr TR ThT T
The Group r5E
Liabilities 8
Finance lease obligation HAREAR 5 9 42 131 - - 187
Other payables AR 7653 2,091 534 = - - 10278
Amaunt due to fellow ERRZNBAAE
subsidiaries 312 - - - - - 312
Clients’ balances REER 169,426 = - - = - 169426
177396 2,100 576 131 - - 180,203
Derivative financial instruments T4 48T & 2,579 - - - - - 2,579
179975 2100 576 131 - - 192782
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

3.4.1 Financial instruments measured at fair

value

The following table represents the carrying
value of financial instruments measured
at fair value at the balance sheet date
across the three levels of the fair value
hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value
of each financial instrument categorised
in its entirety based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:

Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
price in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data.

Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured
using valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on observable
market data.

3

TRERER (&)

3.4

tREEREBENAAE
3.4.1 BAARBETENLHTA

TREJNNGEER - FEW
BHREENER 2RI
H:BEIMRENAAE
FMHEN =@EFHF - A
NREMAENSBTANK
H{E BEEBTANIA
EREBEZFAKENEER
REFEREERETENERIE
THRE - EHSETED
N

F1R (meER)  MBE
SRR R HRE (REA

%) HEARME -

oM RAEESRA
BHMHSEUSRET AR
B - KRB HERMEE
HEHBEEN2HIEEX
RERBERABRETHH
&

FEIR (REFR) : 2AE
ERMGERME  ERE
ZH2HH T RRR A BE
mIHERE -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
(continued)

3.4.1 Financial instruments measured at fair
value (continued)

As at 31 December 2014

3

fok o B 5 A M

TRERBER (&)
3.4 SRMEERABHNAAME (F)

341 BAABTENZHBTA

(%)
R-ZE—NmNF+=-A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1R EPE £33N @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TERT TERT TERT TERT
Assets BE
Derivative financial instruments  #T44@IT A - 55,544 - 55,544
Liabilities 8
Derivative financial instruments T4 48T E - 4,662 - 4,662
As at 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=F+=-A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ERF ER R @st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT
Assets BE
Derivative financial instruments 74 4$ @I E - 56,594 = 56,594
Liabilities af
Derivative financial instruments ~ $74 4@ T A - 2,579 = 2,579

The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market is
determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included
in level 2.

WIHFNERTSEE 2SR
TR HAAERBEER
MEE - ZF[RERMED
AR ERH A BE M58
1% - WEARETKE R B
EfhE o MiZ AR EHE—
HTAMBHNEHER2H
YR BRES - AIZATA
I AF2H o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

(continued)

3.4.1

3.4.2

Financial instruments measured at fair
value (continued)

The fair value of forward foreign exchange
contracts is determined using forward
exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period, with the resulting value discounted
back to present value.

There have been no significant transfers
between level 1, level 2 and level 3 for the
year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

Financial assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the fair
value of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities not measured at fair value are
not materially different from their carrying
amounts due to their short maturities.

Balances due from agents and other
receivables include the contractual amounts
for settlement of trades other obligations
due to the Group.

Clients’ balances represent the margin
deposits received from clients for their
trading activities under normal course
of business. Their carrying values are a
reasonable approximation of fair value.

3

TRRERER (&8)
ERMEERBBENANE (B)

3.4

3.4.1

3.4.2

BAAETENZHTA
(&)

EHIIMER DR A BEIZR
SHRMERERERE - T
EEMEEKRBRTER
-

REBEE_ZE—NEFER_Z—
=f+-_A=+—HBIitF
B - B8 - B2l R FIR
B S R E o

TEAAENBHEHBEE
REE

RZE—NER_FT—=%F
+-AB=+—8 ' aiitE
BW IR ARENEN SR
EERBENISHARE
WE AR EEEREEY &
EAER o

R W A3 4 ok R EL A KUK
HERENAKENBARE
NRGMEHFBAREME
£

EF&HREE—RATEH
BIEPFE PR 5EEWER
mEHEFFK - HRMEE
RARBEHEEOR -
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3 SREREE(E)

3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 34 SRMEERABHNARME(E)
(continued)
3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial 343 HHLHEERHERE
liabilities
(a)  Financial assets (a) ZHEE
The following financial assets are LNTeREEXE
subject to offsetting, enforceable $H - AT oRBIENTIT AT —
master netting arrangements and FRREE R HE B
similar agreements. hEMRR °
As at 31 December 2014 R=-Z-NFE+=A
=t+—H
Related amounts not set
off in the balance sheet
TRHREESRREH
WEBTE
Gross
amounts of Net
recognized amounts
financial  of financial
Gross liabilities assets
amounts of setoff  presented
recognised in the in the Cash
financial balance balance Financial collateral Net
assets sheet sheet Instruments received Amount
REERER ZEEERA
BRE REHCER 251t B
CHEENE CRAREE CREETE SHIE BERAR #E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Thn TiEn Tin Tin TEn
Derivative financial  4T44BTE
instruments 63,881 (8,337) 55,544 - - 55,544
Total @t 63,881 (8,337) 55,544 - - 55,544
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 TRERERE (&)
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 34 SRMEERABHNARME(E)
(continued)
3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial 343 HEcAEERZHARE
liabilities (continued) (&)
(a)  Financial assets (continued) (a) LHEE (&)
As at 31 December 2013 R_E—=%F+=-A
=+-H8
Related amounts not set
off in the balance shest
TARRNEEBREREH
GohiElab o
Gross
amounts of Net
recognized amounts
financial  of financial
Gross liabilities assets
amounts of setoff  presented
recognised in the in the Cash
financial balance balance Financial collateral Net
assets sheet sheet  Instruments received Amount
REEBER ZEAERA
ERER AEHERZ  MEIR Bl
PRAELE SHAREE SREAETE  SRIE Keffn ik
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL THL THx TAL
Derivative financial  fT4£ 4RI A
instruments 67,549 (10,955) 56,594 - - 56,594
Total @i 67,549 (10,955) 56,594 - - 56,594
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SRRAMER (£)
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 3.4 SHREEREBENAAE(E)
3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial 343 HEcAEERZHARE
liabilities (continued) (&)
Financial liabilities (b) =wHEE
The following financial liabilities are LTe@aExXE
subject to offsetting, enforceable $H - AT oRBIENTIT AT —
master netting arrangements and FRREE R HE B
similar agreements. hEMRR °
As at 31 December 2014 R=-Z2—NFE+=H
=+—H
Related amounts not set
off in the balance sheet
PAREERRREH
HRBnE
Gross
amounts of Net
recognized amounts
financial  of financial
Gross liabilities liabilities
amounts of setoff  presented
recognised in the in the Cash
financial balance balance Financial  collateral Net
liabilities sheet sheet Instruments pledged Amount
REEEER BEBERRA
BRI REHEER  FENN RE;%i]
CREEAT SROEEE SRAETE  SRIA REAR BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i Tin TiEn TiEn TiEn TiErn
Derivative financial  $74£4BIA
instruments (9,576) 4,914 (4,662) - - (4,662)
Total st (9,576) 4,914 (4,662) - - (4,662)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 cREAKRER (&)
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 34 SRMEERABHNARME(E)
(continued)
3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial 343 HEcAEERZHARE
liabilities (continued) (&)
(b)  Financial liabilities (continued) (b) ZHEE (E)
As at 31 December 2013 R_E—=%F+=-A

=+—8

Related amounts not set
off in the balance shest

TAREERBREH
BRBEE
Gross
amounts of Net
recognized amounts
financial  of financial
Gross liabilities liabilities
amounts of setoff  presented
recognised in the in the Cash
financial balance balance Financial collateral Net
liabilities sheet sheet  Instruments pledged Amount
REERER BEERRA
EHRZ AEHEER MR B
CHAGRLE CRAMLE SRARTE  ERIR Relha e

HK$000  HK$000  HKS00D  HKS000  HK$000  HK$O00
TATL TATL TATL TATL TAL TATL

Derivative financial  fT4£4EIE
instruments (11,422) 8,843 (2,579) - - (2,579)

Total o3t (11422) 8,843 (2.579) - - (2,579)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.5

3.6

Financial instruments by category

All the financial assets and financial liabilities
(including cash and bank balances, client trust
bank balances, balance due from/to agents, other
assets, amounts due from/to ultimate holding
company, amounts due from/to fellow subsidiaries,
client balances, balances due to banks, other
payables and finance lease obligation) in the
consolidated balance sheets are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method as “loans and receivables” and “other
financial liabilities at amortised cost” except for
the derivative financial instruments and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss which are
carried at fair value.

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital,
which is a broader concept than the “equity” on
the face of balance sheet, are:
. To comply with the liquid capital
requirements under the Securities and
Futures Commission in Hong Kong,
Investments
and the

Securities Commission in New Zealand

Australian Securities and
Commission in Australia
for its subsidiaries which are licensed
corporations;

. To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders;

o To support the Group’s stability and growth;
and
o To maintain a strong capital base to support

the development of its business.

fok o B 5 A M

3 SREREE(E)

3.5

3.6

BROBENSHMTA

RAEERBRANEZHERE
EleRAE (BRASRRITHE
7 BFERRITES B R
NREBESRS  HMEE  BY &
NEREERQRRE B E
NERMBARKIE  BL&H
R RITHE R - R BA KA
BHEAE) RBEXTAERT
RN A B R MW RR ]
KRB ERATENEBSREA
Bl ERAAREBEARNITES R
TEARBRARBHABRENERE
RS

&ErER
AEEER (BRBREERERN

(fEw] EREM) EENER
Bp

. Th B R A B RO P B X B M
5 NeEBRERAFMPES
SEEZEE  BMNERIM
EFEREERLZEE R
AHMESZBENRDES
MIE

. REASEORFELZRE
N AR R N A A
AR B R O 3 N R &S

. XBHARENRERER
K

. MTRENE AR - A
RHEEBERER -
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3

112

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SRIEARER (&)
3.6 Capital management (continued) 3.6 XEXE®E (£F)
The Group’s gearing ratio at the balance sheet REERGEEANEFELENT ¢
date is shown below:
2014 2013
—2-mEF —F—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Total debt RIETS 602 483
Total equity EREE 392,723 382,099
Gearing ratio ABfEtE 0.15% 0.13%
Total debt includes finance lease obligation, B BEEEREEEAE - ﬁ‘éﬁ
amounts due to fellow subsidiaries and amounts EEANIEINGIE NS AN 32
due to ultimate holding company. NAEJFKIE o
All licensed corporations within the Group complied NEE-—ZE—NMEER_FT—=%F
with their required liquid capital during the years FE - AEERNMBEREEEDE
ended 2014 and 2013. TEHRBESBRE
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 BEES AT RHAE

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are addressed below.

R RAEE R B - WABELERK
HiEA=AER  SEAERERRTHAE
HARREMNSIETAL -

41 EEEHTREBR

AEES B ARKEL G RBE -
mItEEZ @A RAR D B
FRERGRBAN - FER T K
FEHEERABZEREHFLE
RFBZEBRERZ 5t R BRE
R XXEER
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1

4.2

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(a)

Fair value of share options

The Group determines the fair value of
share options at the date at which they
are granted with reference to the fair value
estimated under a valuation model which
are commonly used in the market. The
assumptions used in computing the fair
value of the share options are subject to
managements’ best estimation. Changes in
assumptions about these assumptions could
affect reported fair value of share options.
Managements use their judgment to make
assumptions that are mainly reference to
the historical data of comparable listed
companies.

More details of the assumptions made are
included in Note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s

accounting policies

Management of the Group has not come across

any significant areas where critical accounting

judgements are to be made.

BEE

4.1

fok o B 5 A M

BiHEH R M (F)

ERE G RER (B)

(a)

4.2

BREZALHE

AEERE L BH2ERE
MIZATRERZGEEN G
SRR EEEBREZA
RE -AEEREZAAE
PRz RRBREEEFEL
REMGF - RRERREE
Z R B E A R R H A E
FRER2nRE - BEEEE
REHE  YER2EAEL
VLM REZELEEEL

B -

BRAMEHBRRZEZFHE
FNAR A M R P E24

FE P A £ 2 B A BRR B AE
oz E R

AEBERE R RREMNE
R EELER ST HE -
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114

B B M

e
AR

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the Board of
Directors. The Group’s operating businesses are
structured and managed separately according to the
nature of their operations and the services they provide.
Each of the Group’s business segments represents a
strategic business unit that offers services which are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those
of the other business segments. The Board of Directors
considers the business from a geographical and product
perspective.

Summary details of the business segments are as follows:

(a) the margin dealing segments engage in the
provision of leveraged foreign exchange and other
trading services in Hong Kong and New Zealand;

(b)  the unleveraged cash dealing segment engages in
the provision of non-leveraged foreign exchange
trading services in New Zealand. Unleveraged
cash dealing services were provided to corporate
clients, in particular, those clients engaged in
money changing business for the purpose
of hedging their cash positions and meeting
settlement obligations. The Group is rewarded by
the spread between the price quoted to our clients
and the price offered by our market makers; and

(c) the investment sales segments engage in provision
of sale and marketing functions to clients in New
Zealand and Australia.

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are conducted with
reference to the prices charged to third parties and there
was no change in the basis during the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013.

HE
RENBOBENAERNEFTSRMANRA
MHmE— - AEBHREEBIREE
BUERARERSE D FABEER - X
SEE T & X0 819 B IRHIRT &Y 5K S
EBEA - BRI AAX R RO #HE B
REMEBOR EFENMRIERA
BEBF

P
w

BB MHFBERAmT

(a) HFRBJERHOBREREBRAR
B I (a2 2 AN R B R B AR
7%

(b) FERARESXFHBUERAR
MR IR ASNER F RIS - A
SERAREFPREHAFERARS
RBRE - LERZERETESE
ReBTRBETHEEIM2ER
BHBEBONEF - ARERET
B P HO R {8 B 5K 8 T 45 SR i
RERPRNERS &

(c) WEHED BN AT SORM
EPRHEIHERMSHERE -

ZEoHBORS (NB) H2RBRAE=ZH
WENRERMETT  BEEEREBE_Z
—mFER—E—=FF+_A=+—HILHF

B mBE -
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

The segment information provided to the management

for the reportable segments for the years ended 31

December 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2014

D EHE (&)

BE_T-—NWEN_T—=F+-A=+
—HIEFE - BRI RE o 30 E R E R

A EERIT :

BE_FT-NFEF+-A=1+—-HLFE

New New New
Zealand  Hong Kong Zealand Zealand  Australia
Margin Margin Cash Investment Investment
dealing dealing dealing sales sales Unallocated  Elimination Total
#EW BE HEW #ER il
REERS REERG  RERE REHE  REHE AR B st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TR ThR ThT TR ThR THT
Segment revenue and other S BREREMMRA -
income:
Foreign exchange and other  RESNSEEHMNER
trading income earned from  EfRHHA
external customers 144,214 1] 16,636 - - - - 160,843
Inter-segment sales PHEKEE - 45,657 - 6,687 16,311 - (68,655) -
Segment revenue Ak 144,214 45,650 16,636 6,687 16,311 - (68,655) 160,843
Qther income EfRA 21,237 - 46 55 306 6,147 - 21,7191
Total revenue and other ~ WEREMNAZE
income 165,451 45,650 16,682 6,742 16,617 6,147 (68,655) 188,634
Segment profit/(loss) AEk /(58) 30,205 38,914 15,516 (1,575) 11,824 6,147 101,121
Other staff costs EBETHA (19,552)
Other unallocated ERARARR
administrative and BERY
operating expenses (33,872)
Profit before tax BB ATAR 47,697
Income tax expense FERAR (12,616)
Profit for the year ERR 35,081
Other segment information: ~ A ZER: :
Depreciation and amortisation 7% &3 115 264 57 161 133 2,408 3,138
Finance cost HERA 18 - - - 2 - 2
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5

116

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5 DEEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE-Z—=+_H=1+—HLFE
New New New
Zealand  Hong Kong Zealand Zealand Australia
Margin Margin Cash  Investment  Investment
dealing dealing dealing sales sales Unallocated  Elimination Total
Tl Bk il AT by
REERH REERS  WERS  REBE  RERE AR Faf Ehy
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
THL Thx T ThL ThRL T ThIL ThL
Segment revenue and other - AEBMEREMMA -
income:
Foreign exchange and other  RESMIZPHNER
trading income earned from  EfRFHA
external customers 135,549 (6) 11,505 - - - - 147,048
Inter-segment sales PHRHE - 27,069 - 4,833 7,104 - (39,006) -
Segment revenue Pl 135,549 27,063 11,505 4833 7,104 - (39,006) 147,048
Other income EfA 24,903 - 108 67 14 4579 - 29,671
Total revenue and other WERERALE
income 160,452 27,063 11,613 4,900 7,118 4579 (39,006) 176,719
Segment profit/(oss) AREH/ (BE) 52,080 21,309 6,169 (4,058) (4,565) 4579 75,514
Other staff costs ABETHA (17.323)
Other unallocated ABRARTHR
administrative and BERx
operating expenses (8,061)
Profit before tax BHE&R 50,130
Income tax expense FiEHER (15,356)
Profitfor the year FRAEH 34774
Other segment information;:  Ef A2 &H :
Depreciation and amortisation #7& ;% & 83 319 49 83 471 1545 2,550
Finance cost BERA 100 - 7 - - 16 123
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. The entire
Group’s income from external customers is derived from
its operations in New Zealand.

Ao B S R M

DEE®E (&)

ARRFENRES - ARERBINGEEFH
WA R R E ER BRI E T

2014 2013

—F-mEF —T=F

HK$’000 HK$°000

FHET T

New Zealand il | 160,843 147,048

The locations of its non-current assets (excluding deferred
tax assets) are as follows:

HIRBDEE (TEEEERBEE) D
fogn T

2014 2013

—E-mF —E—=F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FER T

Hong Kong &5 3,651 4,365
New Zealand 4t 7 B 6,064 1,579
Australia S 2,430 614
12,145 6,558

None of the external customers contributes more than
10% of the Group’s trading income individually in the
respective years.

Information on segment assets and liabilities are not
disclosed as this information is not presented to the
Board of Directors as they do not assess performance
of reportable segments using information on assets and
liabilities.

MEINFEFEFERFEAEER S
ARJ10% LA E ©

MR RGN AAER A NS
BT RE D BHRE - WA WER L
B2 RTEEE  AMLEHEES W
BERAENER -
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e
ARE

6

b A
OTHER INCOME 6 Hal A
2014 2013
—E-mF —=—=
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FER FHEIT
Provision of management services REEERS
(Note 27(a)(i)) (Hiat27(a)(i)) 2,019 2,508
Fees and commission income &AM Ee A 23,686 26,499
Interest income FLEBA 1,811 1,525
Exchange gain/(losses), net PE N Wz (E518) - JFRE 22 (1,371)
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HEREEEEN K - 19
Others Hib 253 491
27,791 29,671
STAFF COSTS 7 BT RA
2014 2013
—E-NF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
Staff costs (including directors’ 8 T (BiEE FH
remuneration (Note 25)): (Ht725)) :
Salaries and allowances T& KoERE 31,300 29,978
Pension scheme contributions RINE FTEI R 906 841
Staff option expenses (Note 24) BTHRERS (#i24) 4,339 -
36,545 30,819
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ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER OPERATING 8 THREMEERX
EXPENSES

2014 2013
—E-IOF —ET—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Management fees paid to ultimate TR FHREZERAGTNERE
holding company (Note 27(a)(ii)) (Hiat27(a)(ii)) 799 661
Management fees paid to fellow S FRRMBARNEEE
subsidiaries (Note 27(a)(ii)) (Hiat27(a)(i)) 361 328
Other office occupation expenses EMETERARY 1,619 1,618
Auditor’s remuneration % EREM BN 2,648 2,150
Information services expenses AR X 3,024 3,251
Professional and consultancy fee BENHZAE 8,656 8,109
Repair and maintenance S R
(including system maintenance) (BRERSHEE) 698 598
Marketing, advertising and promotion ~ TBHE - EEREERY
expenses 7,807 4,424
Travelling expenses EIRE 2,892 2,412
Entertainment expenses R ENE 1,089 1,009
Insurance R BR 653 541
Others Hih 3,399 4,355
33,645 29,456
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120

o B R Rk

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% on the estimated assessable profit during the year.
Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit during the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates. The income tax expenses of the Group are

9  FBHAX

BBFF
16.5% M Tl EFTHE B4 -
ERAFEGHTERTEFNNAAEBLEE
FIEBRRBITHRESE
R - AEERAER RORMNE TS H
5 BiR28% M 30% KT Rt H o

charged at a tax rate of 28% in New Zealand and 30%
in Australia in accordance with the local tax authorities.

WD IRF PO i 5t 8 BR )4 71 A
8 I M B T IR

o BB E MBS

2014 2013
—E-NE —F—=F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHExT FET
Current tax; BIEARRIA :
Charge for the year FEHBR 12,947 15,412
Over-provision in prior year EEBEEERE (20) (30)
Others HAith 301 -
Deferred tax: EERIA ¢
Charge for the year (Note 19) FEM (KzE19) (612) (26)
Income tax expense Frfsfim < 12,616 15,356
2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Profit before income tax M TS5 B A 47,697 50,130
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate 1&Z&E &% EH R EWTIE 7,870 8,271
Effect of different taxation rates in HEMBERTRARENTE
other countries 3,464 5,835
Income not subject to tax AR BA (16,164) (17,883)
Expenses not deductible for tax TANFFAX 16,243 19,131
Temporary differences not recognised  RIERE L =% 1,217 32
Utilization of previously unrecognised A 4EBIARER B FIE BB
tax losses (295) -
Over-provision in prior year EFBEEEE (20) (30)
Others EHAh 301 =
Income tax expense Frsfim < 12,616 15,356




10

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 —Z&— 44

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIVIDENDS

On 21 May 2013 and 3 June 2013, the Company declared
a special dividend of HK$1 and HK$0.6 per ordinary share
based on the outstanding shares at the respective dates
of the shareholders meetings. The total special dividends
of HK$16,000,000 were paid to the then shareholders out
of share premium.

The Board of the Company resolved to declare a third
quarterly dividend of HK0.675 cents per ordinary share
in 2013. A total of HK$13,500,000 was paid to the then
shareholders.

On 5 May 2014, a final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2013 of HKO0.5 cents per ordinary
share was approved by the Company’s shareholders.
The dividend of HK$10,000,000 was paid to the then
shareholders of the Company.

On 10 November 2014, the Board approved the
payment of an interim dividend of 2014 of HK0.675
cents per ordinary share, amounting to a total dividend
of HK$13,500,000. The payment was made to the then
shareholders of the Company on 26 November 2014.

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2014 of HK1.075 cents per ordinary share, amounting to a
total dividend of HK$21,500,000 is recommended by the
Directors at the meeting of the Board of Directors held on
31 March 2015. These financial statements do not reflect
this dividend payable.

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2014 is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on Wednesday, 6 May 2015.

10

o o BV 285 A B
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EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 SRER

(a)

Basic earnings per share (a)

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

BREFEF
BREABNRARBREREA
RERFRARAERDBITER
BEy i BEtE -

2014 2013
—Z2-NmF —E—=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHAT
Profit attributable to equity RN GIREREB AR =T
holders of the Company 35,081 34,774
Weighted average number B BT T AARA i T 9

of ordinary shares in issue

2,000,000,000 1,827,857,164

Basic earnings per share BRRERZF (EL)
(HK cents)

1.75 1.90
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EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 11

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 —Z&— 44
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Diluted earnings per share

(b)

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is
based on the profit for the year attributable to

equity holders of the Company. The weighted

average number of ordinary shares used in the

calculation is the number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have

been issued at no consideration on the deemed

exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares under the share option scheme

into ordinary shares.

o o BV 285 A B

BRER (&)

SREERR

BRETRNDRBEFAARR AR
BRBA ARGRFE - BEE
EERBRNEFABRSFRA LD ET
EAEREA - N ERRERIEER
AT BIRR BIT RSB R A A
BEENBELTAR AT BEMm A
WHREZERTHE BB INEFSE -

2014 2013
—E—-MF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FABT
Profit attributable to equity KA EIRER B AR T
holders of the Company 35,081 34,774

Weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue
Adjustments for share options

B 31T E BRI F a8

AR

2,000,000,000 1,827,857,164
4,798,894 =

Weighted average number
of shares for the purpose of
calculating diluted earnings
per share

SAEERESR MWD
HNHEF 15 81

2,004,798,894 1,827,857,164

Diluted earnings per share
(HK cents)

FrEERN G&il)

1.75 1.90
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12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 Y% BERRE
Furniture,
fixtures and  Computer Leasehold Motor
equipment equipment improvements vehicles Total
A
ZERRE EKRE HE#E AE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THL THT THL THL
As at 1 January 2013 W-Z—=%—F—H
Cost 5% 8,285 9,065 8,631 2,420 28,401
Accumulated depreciation 25E (6,975) (8,298) (5,731) (1,503) (22,507)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,310 767 2,900 917 5,894
For the year ended HE_ZT=F
31 December 2013 +ZRA=+—RALFE
Opening net carrying amount  EH8REF(E 1,310 767 2,900 917 5,894
Exchange adjustments fE 5= (12) (10) (19) (32) (73)
Additions INE 740 994 231 946 2,911
Depreciation nE (502) (422) (1,192) (315) (2,431)
Closing net carrying amount  EREE%E 1,536 1,329 1,920 1,516 6,301
RZE—=F
As at 31 December 2013 +-A=1+—H
Cost B AR 8,577 9,366 8,484 3,061 29,488
Accumulated depreciation REiE (7,041) (8,037) (6,564) (1,545) (23,187)
Net carrying amount RHFE 1,536 1,329 1,920 1,516 6,301
For the year ended BE-_T-NF
31 December 2014 TZA=+—HLLFE
Opening net carrying amount  FHREFE 1,536 1,329 1,920 1,516 6,301
Exchange adjustments i 5 R (29) 9 4 (37) (53)
Additions NE 456 1,665 1,285 - 3,406
Depreciation neE (537) (715) (943) (397) (2,592)
Closing net carrying amount  FREEEFE 1,426 2,288 2,266 1,082 7,062
As at 31 December 2014 RZF—MF
+=ZA=+-A
Cost 5% 8,632 10,620 9,330 2,937 31,519
Accumulated depreciation ZEiE (7,206) (8,332) (7,064) (1,855) (24,457)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,426 2,288 2,266 1,082 7,062
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

13 HEREEE

Computer
software
B4
HK$’000
FAET
As at 1 January 2013 RZE—=%—H—H
Cost [DEN 6,636
Accumulated amortisation 2 g 30 (6,307)
Net carrying amount AREDFE 329
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_Z-—=F+-_A=1+—HIL&E
Opening net carrying amount FHREFE 329
Exchange adjustments bEE 4, 38 B 1
Additions NE 46
Amortisation i (119)
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 257
As at 31 December 2013 R-ZB—=F+_"_FA=+—H
Cost B AR 6,522
Accumulated amortisation RET 5 (6,265)
Net carrying amount BREFE 257
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE-Z—MNMFE+-_A=+—HILFE
Opening net carrying amount FHREFE 257
Exchange adjustments HE 5, e B 22
Additions NE 5,350
Amortisation B (546)
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 5,083
As at 31 December 2014 RZE-—NFE+-A=+—H
Cost %N 11,610
Accumulated amortisation 2T (6,527)
Net carrying amount REE 5,083
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15
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o B R Rk

OTHER ASSETS AND PREPAYMENTS 14 HtEERESRE

2014 2013
—E-mF —F—=

HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Rental, utility and other receivables e - DR & H AR EIE 2,817 3,167
Prepayments TEfT IR 1,321 1,553
Others Hib 2,452 253
Total 4 6,590 4,973
The carrying amounts of the Group’s other assets AEBHEMEENEREEREE AL EMN

approximate to their fair values.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 15 14T A
2014 2013
—E2-mEF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
Current assets RBEE
Derivative foreign exchange contracts  $T4EIMNES %) 55,544 56,594
Current liabilities REBEE
Derivative foreign exchange contracts  $T4EIMNES %) (4,662) (2,579)
Total Bt 50,882 54,015

The Group has trades in foreign currencies through its
foreign currency margin trading business. In order to
protect against exchange rate movements, the Group has
entered into a number of foreign exchange and forward
transactions with the Group’s bankers to manage its net
foreign currency exposure.

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward
foreign exchange contracts at 31 December 2014 and
2013 are HK$2,458,651,000 and HK$2,584,207,000
respectively.

AEBBEBEINERES R HEHKETH
K25 RREBASEITXEXRRHT
& KAEBRAEFRBITIILZIRAINER
FEHIR ZAE R EINE R HEE

RZEBE—NMER-_ZE—=F+_-H=
+—H AAFREERBAIIEGHNMNE
£ A% 55 5 A2458,651,0008 T K&
2,584,207,000/8 7L °



16

17

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 —Z&— 44

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao B S R M

BALANCES DUE FROM AGENTS 16 FEW R 48R
2014 2013
—E-OF == =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Balances due from: JFEW A R
— securities agents —EHRE 12,099 16,910
The carrying amounts of the Group’s balances due from AEEEKRBESRNRAEEEARE
agents approximate to their fair values. The balances BE - ERREEHRBRSEE - RiKA
due from agents are current in nature and ageing within 30RARA °
30 days.
CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND CLIENT 17 BERBRITEKRUREFETLRITE

TRUST BANK BALANCES

5

2014 2013

=k —F=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FET

Cash and bank balances e RIBITER 318,649 201,926
Fixed deposits with banks RITEHITFR 70,570 157,046
Client trust bank balances REEFRITES 149,966 124,908
539,185 483,880

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts with
authorised financial institutions to hold clients’ deposits
arising from normal business transactions. The Group
is not allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its
own obligations in the ordinary course of business,
and therefore they are not included as cash and cash
equivalents in the statement of cash flows.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, fixed deposits of
HK$45,497,000 and HK$45,101,000 respectively are
pledged to banks for banking facilities. No overdraft
facility was utilised by the Group as at 31 December 2014
and 2013. No bank deposits are collateral deposits by
the Group placed with market makers as at 31 December
2014 (2013: HK$3,196,000).

AEENERESREBRFEEEREL
RP - UREBEFPRE —REBRXHNF
Ko AEETAHATFMNERFERR
FRAREEHERTNES - BHHZFER
R EH AR RERTIERE LIRS

RZE—OFER=T—=F+=A=+—
H - 45,497,000% st &45,101,000% J©
MEBTERDRIBBITEERB FERT -
RZE—OFR=_E—=F+=A=+—
B A&EMESHBTMELE - R
—ME+-_A=+—H BERTERE
AEERTSHRGFENERER (=28
— =% :3,196,000/87C) °
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17 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND CLIENT 17 BRERBITEKUREEETLERITE

TRUST BANK BALANCES (continued) & (&)
For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow MEmeHEeRERMEs  REKBERFE
statements, cash and cash equivalents comprises of the YIBFEATEIE
following:
2014 2013
—E-mF —=—=
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FER FAET
Cash and bank balances e NIRTTA R 318,649 201,926
Fixed deposits with bank with original RN =1& 8 A2 HE
maturity within three months HRITEHFE R 25,073 108,749
343,722 310,675
18 FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS 18 mEHEERE
Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to HEAEGEER LAEEEERETRIER -
the lease asset revert to the lessor in the event of default. BABLYNFEHE ZEEMNBESEHA
j\ o
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Gross finance lease liabilities BEHEaERE
— minimum lease payments — &EEERFK
Not later than 1 year —FRA 47 56
Later than 1 year and no later than —FEERAFA
5 years 73 131
120 187
Future finance charges on BEAENRRBERZ
finance leases (6) (16)
Present value of finance lease liabilities Et&RES EHE 114 171
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FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS (continued) 18 ®EHERE (&)
The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows: MEMEABRENT
2014 2013
—E-mF —F—=
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Not later than 1 year —FR 41 45
Later than 1 year and no later than —FBEAFA
5 years 73 126
114 171
The Group leases various vehicles under non-cancellable REBRBAUFHEOBREESHZE LA
finance lease agreements. The lease terms are 3 to 5 ETHEH -HERR=Z1F MEEM
years and ownership of the assets lie within the Group. BREGAEEME °
DEFERRED TAXATION 19 IEERIE
The major components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) BERIBEEE (BE) WEEDHHAL
recorded in the consolidated balance sheet and the EEEBERA  MREARNEZENT :
movements during the year are as follows:
Other
Employee temporary
benefits Depreciation differences Total
H At E s
EEER wE MERE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
At 1 January 2013 RZT—=%F
—H—H 109 (182) 329 256
Exchange adjustments BEE 3, 58 (11) 13 (20) (18)
(Charge)/credit for the year & (%), 5 A 67 20 (61) 26
At 31 December 2013 RZZT—=4%
+—A=+—H 165 (149) 248 264
At 1 January 2014 R —OF
—H—H 165 (149) 248 264
Exchange adjustments PE 5 A% (25) 13 (50) (62)
Credit for the year FAREFA 229 3 380 612
At 31 December 2014 R_T—mF
+=ZA=+—H 369 (133) 578 814
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DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 19

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an
individual entity basis when there is a legal right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred taxation relates to the same authority.
The following amounts, without taking into consideration
the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction,
are as follows:

IEEBE ()

BB R TEREN R A% BT 1R & A SR A A A
HABEE MELEREYRF—#E
B o RIA] R M BIDE A B R SE TR IR & B
BEERE NERBRERARERAN S
(Y mat R HAEER) FIEAT -

2014 2013
—E-MF —T—=%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Deferred tax assets to be recovered EIEF T E E
after more than twelve months (HBiE12{8 B &) 947 413
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled EERIEEE
after more than twelve months (BB 12E A& ft) (133) (149)
814 264

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised for the
following:

2014 2013

—E-F —T—=F

HK$’°000 HK$'000

FHT FHEIT

Unused tax losses RE)BIRIAREE - 975
- 975
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OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 20 HtENFEREHNERS
2014 2013
—E—-MF —_F—=
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHExT FET
The Group AEE
Accrued rental benefit s e Fas 295 648
Accruals et E A 4,707 4,146
Commission payable FEfRHA S 7,385 5,038
Employee entitlements EERER 1,862 1,604
Deferred income EIEU A 1,043 307
Other payables H fth fET 518 1,866 446
17,158 12,189
2014 2013
—E-mF —F=F
HK$’°000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
The Company RAF
Accruals FEET &R 1,729 1,414
1,729 1,414
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s AN ER B 2 7R X A EL ) FE R IE A BR [ A B
other payables approximate to their fair values. HARBEEE
CLIENTS’ BALANCES 21 BEFEiEs

The balances represent margin deposits received from
clients for their trading activities under normal course
of business. The carrying amounts approximate to their
fair values.

REBRERERXBBRETETEERR
BUEMEFHNREBEES TR - FEERERQ
RERE
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22 SHARE CAPITAL 22 B
2014 2013
—E-mEF —_F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Authorised: JETE ¢
4,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 4,000,000,0008%
HK$0.01 each FAR0.01BITH E B 40,000 40,000
Issued and fully paid: BITREE -
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 2,000,000,0008%
HK$0.01 each FX0.01BTTH) E Bk 20,000 20,000
The movements in issued share capital were as follows: EBEITRAEEHFERAT
Number of Issued
shares share
in issue capital
ERTRAHE ERITRA
HK$'000
FHET
As at 1 January 2013 R=m==%=JF—g 10,000,000 100
Capitalisation issue (Note (a)) B BT (K5t (a) 1,646,655,000 16,467
Placing of new shares (Note (b)) B &SRR (H77E (b)) 343,345,000 3,433
As at 31 December 2013 and RZE—=F+-A=+—BK
31 December 2014 —E—NNE+=_A=+—H 2,000,000,000 20,000
132
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(a) Pursuant to the written resolution passed by
the shareholders on 3 June 2013, the directors
were authorised to allot and issue a total of
1,646,655,000 shares by way of capitalisation of
the sum of HK$16,466,550 standing to the credit
of the share premium account of the Company
by applying such sum in paying up in full at par
1,646,655,000 shares for allotment and issue to the
then shareholders in proportion to their respective
shareholdings.

(b) On 3 July 2013, 343,345,000 shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company were issued at premium at
an issue price of HK$0.452 each by way of the
placing.

CAPITAL RESERVE

The balance represents the difference between the book
value of the net assets of KVB Kunlun New Zealand
Limited, KVB Kunlun Pty Limited and KVB Kunlun
International (HK) Limited over the par value of the
shares issued by LXL Capital Il Limited, LXL Capital Ill
Limited and LXL Capital IV Limited in exchange for these
subsidiaries as if the current group structure had been in
existence since 1 January 2011.

22

23

o o BV 285 A B

A (&)

(a) BERER-_ZT—=%Fx~A=H
BANEMARR EFEERE
1A QAR D % (B R/ E BR &
16,466,550 T # 75 & 2N LA B 2 &
2 17 A& £1,646,655,0000% P& 17
FEREZEFRBARZEERRE
4 #£1,646,655,0000% f% 15 -+ A%
ERRRS B 8RR O R S
BERBEITEBARS -

(b) RMZZE—=F+tA=H ' ARQRM
Bl & 75 N 1% m B § 180.452/8 7T &Y
2% 17 {8 ¥ 17343,345,0000% & & @
BE0.01BTTRIAR A °

BEXRR®E

% #5 % #KVB Kunlun New Zealand
Limited * KVB Kunlun Pty Limited & 2
R (BB ERAREEFENKEE
EAL XL Capital Il Limited * LXL Capital
[l Limited & LXL Capital IV Limited A A
RBZERBRBIMBETHRMDOEEZ
FRZER HONRGEERES _T——
F-A—HE—EFE-
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 10 January 2014, the Board of Directors of the
Company has granted 40,000,000 share options to 68
individuals for their subscription of new ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 per share of the Company.

These share options are exercisable at HK$0.414 per
share, with varying vesting period and validity from the
date of grant. 40 out of 68 of the Grantees are granted
share options which are exercisable for a period of three
years and a vesting period of one year from the date of
grant. 28 remaining Grantees are granted share options
which are exercisable for a period of two years from the
date of grant, with a vesting period of two years from the
date of grant. All of the share options have no vesting
condition. Among the 40,000,000 share options granted,
14,920,000 share options were granted to six Directors
of the Company.

The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash.

24

fBIR AT &

RZZE—NFE—A+H ARREEELMH
684 A 3% 140,000,000 AR A#E - i
SREARNREFREEC.O1B T L@
A% o

ZEEREAIZER0414BTTHNERT
LAFTfE - BRI BB RERBH KA
HER -8R ER AT HIOLER AR
BRAR=FHMERNITENERE  FEH
BRI R B —F - R 28R ER
ABEE ED AR RF R RTE
MERE  BEHERE B BB A
FoMERREHESBEYT -2RERN
40,000,0001p fE Ak #EH - KRR REBES
TE1%14,920,00017 BB A% #E -

AEEYELELIHERENRSEDK
REEBRE -



ANNUAL REPORT 2014 —Z&— 44

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao B S R M

24

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

24 BRESTE (2)

Movements in the number of share options outstanding MARITEREIRESEEFHNT
are as follows:
Outstanding Granted Forfeited Outstanding
at beginning during during at end of Exercise Exercise
Grantee Date of grant of the period the period the period the period price period
ERA BB REMERTE REBRLE  REERRK  RERERTRE ﬁﬁ% bt ]
HK
BT
Liu Stefan 10 January 2014 = 9,520,000 = 9,520,000 0.414 10 January 2015 to
\ 9 January 2018
Birsk “2-ME-A1H “E-E-ATRE
“E5-\5-AnA
Ng Chee Hung Frederick 10 January 2014 = 4,000,000 = 4,000,000 0.414 10 January 2015 to
9 January 2018
R “2-ME-A1E ZE-E-ATRE
“E-\§-AnA
Stephen Gregory McCoy 10 January 2014 - 800,000 - 800,000 0.414 10 January 2015 to
9 January 2018
Stephen Gregory McCoy “2-TE-A+H “5-1%-A1RZ
“E-\§-AnA
Zhao Guixin 10 January 2014 = 200,000 = 200,000 0.414 10 January 2015 to
9 January 2018
el “2-ME-ATH “E-IE-ATRE
“E-\§-AnA
Cornelis Jacobus Keyser 10 January 2014 - 200,000 - 200,000 0.414 10 January 2015 to
9 January 2018
Cornelis Jacobus Keyser “E2-IE-A+H “5-1%-ATHE
“E-\5-ANA
Lin Wenhui 10 January 2014 - 200,000 - 200,000 0.414 10 January 2015 to
\ 9 January 2018
R “2-ME-A1H “E-If-ATRE
ZZ-N\E-ANA
Employees of group 10 January 2014 - 19,290,000 (1,150,000) 18,140,000 0.414 10 January 2015 to
companies 9 January 2018
EEATER “2-ME-A1H “2-Rf-ATRZ
ZZ-\E-ANA
Employees of group 10 January 2014 - 2,740,000 (470,000) 2,270,000 0.414 10 January 2016 to
companies 9 January 2018
SEAAES “2-ME-A1H 25 §-RTRZ
ZZ-\&-ANA
Consultants 10 January 2014 - 1,200,000 - 1,200,000 0.414 10 January 2015 to
9 January 2018
B “2-ME-A1H “2-Rf-ATRZ
ZZ-\&-ANR
Consultants 10 January 2014 - 1,850,000 (100,000) 1,750,000 0.414 10 January 2016 to
9 January 2018
B “2-ME-ATA ZE-RTRE
ZZ-\&-ANA
- 40,000,000 (1,720,000) 38,280,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used to
estimate the fair value of the options. The variables and
assumptions used in computing the fair value of the share
options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The
value of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions. Details of the share options
granted on 10 January 2014 was as follows:

Weighted average share HK$0.1227
option price at the
grant date:
Risk free interest rate: 1.154%
Expected volatility: 42.92%
Expected dividend yield: 1.96%
Expected exercise multiple:  Directors: 2.8x exercise
price

Others: 2.2x exercise
price

The measurement date of the share options was 10
January 2014, being the date of grant of the share
options. The expected dividend yield is determined
with reference to historical dividend payment history of
comparable listed companies up to the measurement
date. The expected volatility of share price is determined
with reference to annualised historical weekly volatility
of comparable listed companies’ share prices as of the
valuation date, as extracted from Bloomberg.

BRETE (7))

“IRA B E ER AR A A B RE
MARE - sHEBREDAEMANER
&ﬁ““ﬁ%)f%%ﬁﬁrfﬂéﬁr - B EE
EEXLTIBERRNEHTRAMEL - R
“E-EFE-A+TARENBRENFEE
W

RIFH A EH 0.1227% 7T
TS
FEAREE -
fEE e F I 1.154%
TEERR IR 42.92%
FE EpY B & 1.96%

TBEITE R %( : B%  {TEE2.8fF

Hih - {7fE(E2.2fF

BRENFEEHA-ZT—NE— A+
A BELBRENBEE - BHREXRTY
PERELR EMARAEE =8B
AREBfRESGMERE - REMNTEIKIE

SLERBEZENAELR EMAFRE
BEFARENFRE(CAESRKEME
= -
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25 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

25 EERSAEEENME

EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
Emoluments paid/payable to the directors of the AREBE_TNFR-F—=
Company by the Group during the years ended 31 FTZA=T—HLEFERARA
December 2014 and 2013. BRSNS RS
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE_F-ME+-A=t—HL
FE
Employer’s
Salary contribution Dis-
Director and other to pension cretionary Other
Name of director EEps fee  benefits scheme bonuses  benefits Total
#e¢R EXEHRS
Exne HumA  HEMR BERL  HeEd EHY
HK$°000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TET TET TEx TEx TET
Executive Directors: HITES:
Mr. Liu Stefan AMAELE 120 365 17 30 240 772
Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick ~ REE%4~ 120 788 17 66 - 991
Non-executive Directors: FHTES
Mr. Li FRHE 60 - - - - 60
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy  Stephen Gregory
McCoyZt 60 - - - - 60
Independent Non-executive ~ BV EHTEE :
Directors:
Ms. Zhao Guixin HEBIL 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser  Cornelis Jacobus
Keyserft &£ 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Lin Wenhui MRS E 120 - - - - 120
720 1,153 34 96 240 2,243
137



KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B 7 20 B <5 il 55 [ BR A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao B 5 A M

25

138

DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 25

(a) EBME (&)

EEREREEEBNME (&)

HE_Z2—=F+-_A=+—H81

FE
Employer’s
Salary contribution Dis-
Director and other  to pension  cretionary Other
Name of director EShA fee  Dbenefits scheme  bonuses  benefits Total
Fek  EEXEAK
EShe  HMEH  SFEER BERL HiRET i
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
AT TAL TEr TEr  TEx  TER
Executive Directors: YITES:
Mr. Liu Stefan B E 120 374 15 365 240 1,114
Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick ~ RiEiR% 4 120 787 15 393 = 1,315
Non-executive Directors: EHTES :
Mr. Li FRE 60 = = = - 60
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy ~ Stephen Gregory
McCoy% & 60 - - 69 - 129
Independent Non-executive ~ BUEHTES
Directors:
Ms. Zhao Guixin HEBLL 120 - - - = 120
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser  Cornelis Jacobus
Keyserst £ 120 - - - = 120
Mr. Lin Wenhui MBS E 120 = = = = 120
720 1,161 30 827 240 2,978

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013, no directors of the Group waived any

emoluments and no emolument was paid to any

of the directors as an inducement to join or upon

joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office.

HEZZ-—NEER=_T—=F+=A=+
—BIFE  BEAEEEERET M
¢ BAKEETEINHNE FEANES -
YEA DA S B 3 0 A B A SE B =X 1 A B

B o
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25 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 25 EEREREEENEME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEESHAL
The five highest paid employees during the years HEZZ—NEERZZT—=F+=
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 included three A=+—HILFE  himaHE
and one directors respectively, details of whose BENRBIE=2k—RESE ' HM
remuneration are set out in Note 25(a) above. S FIBEEH N £ XK sE25(a) o H i
Details of the remuneration of the remaining non- EELSHFEEREE_ZT T
directors, highest paid employees during the years EN_F—=F+-_A=+—HIt
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 are as follows: FEENMESHESTWMT
2014 2013
—E2-lF —E—=fF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHERT FHTT
Salary and commission e ke 1,728 3,708
Employer’s contribution to EERRSF MK
pension scheme 34 144
Discretionary bonuses B IEIEAL 150 676
1,912 4,528
No emoluments have been paid to these individuals BHE_TNFR-ZFT—=F+=A=+
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group —HIEFE  BERZEATIAMEE
or as compensation for loss of office during the D0 5= B 3 00 A s B 5% B) 3k /% B B
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013. wHE -
The emoluments of the highest-paid individuals of KEBESHE AT (BEEIN) HEE
the Group other than the directors fall within the R T &k
following bands:
2014 2013
—E-IF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Emolument bands Bz )
— HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 — 0752 1,000,0008 7T 1 -
— HK$1,000,001 to — 1,000,001 LE
HK$1,500,000 1,500,000/ 7T 1 4
- HK$1,500,001 to — 1,500,001 TE
HK$2,000,000 2,000,000/ 7T - -
- HK$2,000,001 to — 2,000,001 LE
HK$2,500,000 2,500,000/ 7T - -
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B 25 A ik

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY

R—ENBARZRE

The Company AA T
2014 2013
—E-NlF —T—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHBxT TFHIT
Investment in a subsidiary R—ENEARIZERE
Investments, at cost: & R
Unlisted shares IE E AR (D 5,265 1
Capital contribution relating to BRAARGD RERS
share-based payment WMz EREE 2,844 -
8,109 1

The capital contribution relating to share based payment
relates to options on 23,440,000 shares granted by
the company to employees and directors of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group. Refer to note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements for further details on
the Group’s share option scheme.

BRANRND AERARI 2 EAFE EAR
RAAEERASENBEARIEAESK
i /923,440,000 8t 2 BEIRHEB#E - B
AASEBRETS ZE—PHBRELH
AR ME24 o
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INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 26

As at the date of the report, the Company had direct and
indirect interests in the following subsidiaries:

R—EWBIARZERE (&)
REERH - ARERTIMBARES

HiEkEEER

Issued share
capital/Particulars

Place of incorporation Principal activities and of issued Equity

Company name and kind of legal entity place of operation share capital  interest held
BRITRA

DREH MR ISR EEERERN EEXBREERE ERTRAFE FREINRE

LXL Capital | Limited"®”  British Virgin Island, Investment holding, US$200 100%

Limited liability company British Virgin Island (direct)

LXL Capital | Limited™®"  HBRZHES  BRAF RELR  RBRIES 200E7T  100% (E#)

KVB Kunlun New Zealand  New Zealand, Provision of leveraged NZ$10,862,083 100%

Limited Limited liability company foreign exchange services, (indirect)

New Zealand
KVB Kunlun New Zealand ~ #7EH + HRAF REERANERY - AFEH 10,862,083 FHT  100% (A#%)

Limited
KVB Kunlun Pty Limited
KVB Kunlun Pty Limited
KVB Kunlun International
(HK) Limited
KVB Kunlun International
(HK) Limited
LXL Capital Il Limiteg™ee !
LXL Capital Il Limited®#?
LXL Capital Il Limited™oe 1
LXL Capital Il Limited®*7
LXL Capital IV Limited"oe 1
LXL Capital IV Limited®7
LXL Capital IX Limited"oe
LXL Capital IX Limited®#
LXL Capital VIII Limited"e® !

LXL Capital VIII Limited®’

Australia,
Limited liability company
Bl BRA

Hong Kong,
Limited liability company

&R BRRA

British Virgin Island,
Limited liability company

RERAES  ARAA

British Virgin Island,
Limited liability company

RERAES  ARAA

British Virgin Island,
Limited liability company

RERAES  ARAA

British Virgin Island,
Limited liability company

RERAES  ARAA

British Virgin Island,
Limited liability company

RERAES  ARAA

Provision of sales service,
Australia
REHERS - BN

Provision of management
services and leveraged
foreign exchange trading
services, Hong Kong

REEERE R
HEINER SRS - BE

Investment holding,
British Virgin Island
REER  RBEELHS

Investment holding,
British Virgin Island
REER  RBEELHS

Investment holding,
British Virgin Island
REER  RBEELHS

Investment holding,
British Virgin Island
REER  RBEELHS

Investment holding,
British Virgin Island
REER  RBEELHS

AU$1,800,010
1,800,0107T
100,000,000
ordinary shares
100,000,0008%
LAk
US$100
100%7T
US$200
200%7T
US$100
100%7T
US$100
100%7T
US$100

100%E7T

100%
(indirect)
100% (FE#)

100%
(indirect)

100% (&%)

100%
(indirect)
100% (FE#)

100%
(indirect)
100% (FE#)

100%
(indirect)
100% (FE#)

100%
(indirect)
100% (FE#)

100%

(indirect)
100% (FE#)

141



KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED

F. o 2 ¢ < 4 I PR )

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e
ARE

26

27

142

B 25 A ik

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 26 R—BENBRARIZRE (&)
Company name Place of incorporation Principal activities and Issued Equity
and kind of legal entity place of operation share capital  Interest held
AR EH MR EEEREN FEXBREEHE ERITRE BFHENRE
LXL Capital V Limited"®”  British Virgin Island, Investment holding, US$100 100%
Limited liability company British Virgin Island (indirect)
LXL Capital V Limited"®" ~ EBELEHS @ ERAA REZR  ZBETES 100X 100% (F#)
Yorkastle Capital Hong Kong, Investment holding, 1,000,000 100%
Limited"ee2 Limited liability company Hong Kong ordinary shares (indirect)

Yorkastle Capital Limited”#2 &% » AR A7

Zhuhai Henggin Kunlun
Financial Exchange
Limited™ete2

KEEERERMOR
AP LERAT

People’s Republic of China,
Limited liability company

hEARANE - FRAF

Note 1:

REZE - &R

Provision of financial services,
People’s Republic of China

RESRRY - PEARANE

No audited financial statements have been prepared

as these companies are incorporated in a jurisdiction

which does not have any statutory audit requirements.

Note 2:

operation during the current year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The companies are newly incorporated and has no

27

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party
or exercise significant influence over the other party in

making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common

control.

For the outstanding balance due from or to related
parties, net amount is presented when the Group has
a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized

amounts, and intends to settle on a net basis.

1,000,0000%  100% (f&#)

LEk
RMB10,000,000 100%
(indirect)
AR¥10,000,000c  100% (F5#)

W1 - B ZE L mlAE L /Y A% I A
FIDEEFEHE - LG RAEF R
M -

Writ2 : B FE R Al R AFEFAEM AL A RA

BBE RS
fW—JT B N E SRR ES S — T HE
MBEREERREH S —HRBEEAFE
N EHFABERE - 8 X HXRESE
INE A R o

BN EN AR T WREREHRME
AEBARAZRFIEHEE A SER
WHIRFREEGER 2D SHFE -
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 27

(a)

The Group and the Company had the following
material transactions and balances with related

parties during the year.

RBEXS (&)

(a) AEERARRNFRNEEETE
TTEARRZH RAERIAT o

The Group REE
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=fF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
KaE FHT FHET
Transactions 5
Management fee income for M T AR HER
the provision of group I F IR
management, IT, marketing TS HEE R ITH
and administration TENESEBIWA
support from: a (i)
— fellow subsidiaries — RARKBRT] 2,019 2,508
Management fee expense for AT ABIREERS
the provision of information RIS 4E - B
technology support, financial R R AL e
system and websites BRAS - TTISHEE -
maintenance services, . "
marketing promotion, iggﬁiﬂﬁ%m
customer services and BoERIES
reconciliation to: (if)
— ultimate holding company — AR AT 799 661
— fellow subsidiaries — ARKBAT] 361 328
Amounts paid for the provision [T A& 1244
of software development EERR R R U
and maintenance services, RS Bkl
IT infrastructure project THE SRR
TETEOMENL EME R B ARG
maintenance services and BRI 25 -
IT risk assessment el
services to:
— a fellow subsidiary — —RERREMBA A (ifi) 4,865 =
Outstanding balances REEEEHS
Due from related parties: FE U BA B 5 308 -
— ultimate holding company — AR A T] (v) - 23
— fellow subsidiaries — RIEHBRAR] (viii) - 75
Other assets and prepayments: H/&E RIBNHIE : (Vi)
— travel advances to key —TEEBAERNE
management IRE K - 3
Due to related parties: FESTRAES 5 308 - (vii)
— fellow subsidiaries SEELIEAE 488 312
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 27 BHAERZ (E)
(a) (continued) (a) (&)
The Company ENS
2014 2013
—E-mF —=—=
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
liga FHET FAT

Outstanding balances REBLEER

Due from related parties: JE s B g 5 SRR

— subsidiary NG (iv) 64,653 65,907
— ultimate holding company — RARPERR A A (v) - 12

Due to related parties: FE A< BB 5 50 (vii)

— subsidiaries — B AT 13,901 663

Notes: Hiat :

(i) Management fee income is determined with (i) %ff{%#ﬁ/\]}%%ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ
reference to the cost of provision of group - ﬁ”:ﬁﬁ&: 5 1 R AT
management, IT, marketing and administration BSRIRIE EI AR I RETE
support services plus mark up.

(i) Management fee expenses are charged for the (i) ERRBXIRBRAABL
provision of information technology support, X&' MEHE - FPRER

% N 2 1% A4 ik A
marketing, customer services and reconciliation, IR~ BB R 1 R
financial system and web sites maintenance HEEELHR MG o
services with reference to the costs incurred.

(iii) Amounts are paid for the provision of software (i) #Eﬁﬁ’#ﬁﬁﬁ’%%ﬁﬁﬁ\
development and maintenance services, ﬁgﬁf#}f}%@lgﬁ CE X
IT infrastructure project management and AR B R B AR S AF AE PR

=1
maintenance services and IT risk assessment 3 AFE9 7R
services.
(iv) Amounts due from a subsidiary represents (iv) TENHT B8 2RI RATERKVB NZ

intercompany loans with KVB NZ, which are
interest bearing and repayable in accordance with
loan agreements agreed with both parties. The
amounts due from a subsidiary were unsecured,
except for US$6,500,000 (31 December 2013:
US$2,500,000) which is secured by a charge
over the assets of KVB NZ in the form of a general

security agreement entered by both parties.

REIERIE S - ZHHGE
W RIEE T 55 F BB A 53
18 £ - £6,500,000% T (=
E—=ZF+ZA=+—H:
2,500,000% 7T ) #% & 7 # 5T H)
—RIER 2 EF KVB NZ&
EHREEBERS - EWK
M7/ 2 A4 B B AR o
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 27 B®AXS (&)

(@) (continued) (@ (&)

The Company (continued) AT (E)

Notes: (continued) et - (&)

(v)  Amounts due from ultimate holding company are (v)  EUREFER A AR EL
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable - BERBLEFIEE -
on demand.

(vi) Travel advances to key management are (vi) BEBA B E KRB A DE
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable B BEREBZEZKIER
on demand.

(vii)  Amounts due to related parties are unsecured, (i) BB B REL - £
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. BRELESIEE -

(vii)  Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are (viii)  EHE R T8 2 AR A
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable - BE - RIZBEKER -
on demand.

(b) Key management includes directors (executive (b) AEEXIZEEE (BEHTEE
& non-executive) and the remuneration of the MITES) REZEIEA BRSO
key management personnel of the Group was as LU
follows:

2014 2013

—E-NmEF —E—=F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FER T

Salary and other benefits e REMEF 1,153 1,161
Employer’s contribution to pension B F RIS FT B4

scheme 34 30

Discretionary bonuses BB FEAL 96 827

Other benefits HAha 5 960 960

2,243 2,978
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 28 AERIAEE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EAEE
2014 2013
—F-mF =F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Contracted but not provided for EEEEESET - 915
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHEHEE
The Group leases offices under non-cancellable AEERBERSFREEHT AR
operating lease commitments existing at the year HECEHEREHRERAE - HE

end. Leases were negotiated for an average term
of 3 to 6 years.

BEH = NFER

The Group is required to give six months notice for REBEBELNEABAGATLKIE
termination of these leases. ZEMEE o

2014 2013

—E-MF —E—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHIT

Within one year —F R 13,839 12,519

One to five years —ERF 46,258 10,070

60,097 22,589
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29 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

1.

On 29 January 2015, the controlling shareholder of
the Group and CITIC Securities Company Limited
(“CITIC Securities”), a company incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China, entered into the share
purchase agreement pursuant to which CITIC
Securities has agreed to acquire 1,200,000,000
shares of the Group, which represented 60%
of the entire issued share capital of the Group
from the controlling shareholder. Completion of
the transaction is subject to the satisfaction of
conditions as stipulated in the share purchase
agreement.

Upon completion, the outstanding share options
granted during 2014 will be subject to cancellation
under an unconditional mandatory cash offer to be
made by CITIC Securities, subject to the conditions
and completion of the share purchase agreement.
Management is in the process of evaluating the
financial impact on the cancellation of the share
options to the Group.

A final dividend in respect of the year ended
31 December 2014 of HK1.075 cents per
ordinary share, amounting to a total dividend of
HK$21,500,000 is recommended at the Board
of Directors meeting on 31 March 2015. The
proposed final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2014 is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

30 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorized

for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2015.

o o BV 285 A B

29 HRER

1.

R-E—RF—A=-+hB " ' &&
B KRR AR 3R B R (S AE S AR 1D B BR
Al ([FELES] - —ERPEA
REMBEFMA LA RR]) TR
PEBE R - B - REIEFER
= Uk B$1,200,000,0000% 7 £= & f%
D EAREEEIHE BITRA (R
BIERRARER) BI60% © :Z R B AR
IR 0 8 B 1 3R € MO IR E Ak 12 -

RIEm & - T — MR Hm =
RITEHBREBARIETELESF K
EH A EIGRMFEFIR S BN T AT
8 RSB B R BRI R
TERPAR - B EIEREHBRE
BARKEM B EETE

N-_E—RFE=ZA=+—HETZ
Exggx LEERNEBE=_Z—
ME+=—A=+—HILFERNRE
B BB EBA%1.0758 1l (RS
A #21,500,0008 L) c HEZF
—E+=—A=+—HILFEZE
EAHREEAREERREFAE
EREBANERR A

30 H#UEMBE®EX

ARBHREIABEFEEN _F—RF=H

T BHERERETIE
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A summary of the results and of the financial position of KVB L THIIEGaBHEesmEBER QA ([AAQ
Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”, together with 7| - ERIEM B AT&E [ ANEBR]) F£:1BF M
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the last four financial years, {EBEBEERNTIE 7 EE&HE LB IEE T
as extracted from the published audited financial statements, #54%E B T34 4% 2 B 5% o

is set out below.

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+—BHLEE

2014 2013 2012 2011

—E—QmE —T—= —ET——-F —E——F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT T FET T

Total income I A 4258 188,634 176,719 123,222 155,242

Profit before tax R B4 A S22 ) 47,697 50,130 2,432 50,305

Profit/(loss) for the year FREA(E518) 35,081 34,774 (1,749) 35,555
Total comprehensive income FARZHEWZE

for the year qazg 29,785 33,010 2,837 33,301

As at 31 December
BR+=—A=+—8H

2014 2013 2012 2011

—E-ME —T—=F —T——F —T——F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT THET T T

Total assets BERE 626,510 569,993 408,006 397,035

Total liabilities BERE (233,787) (187,894) (175,254) (210,211)

392,723 382,099 232,752 186,824

Total equity and liabilities ERESKREE 626,510 569,993 408,006 397,035

Net current assets MENEEFE 379,837 375,403 226,470 180,930

Total assets less current liabilities @&ER TSN EE

392,929 382,374 233,131 187,299

Note:

wisz -

The summary of the financial information of the Group for each of two ~AEEHZE —T——FR —FT— —F+ - A=+—HIF
years ended 31 December 2011 and 2012 have been extracted from the — FEFEE Z B IEE R E 54 E AN G A 45— F—
prospectus of the Company dated 11 June 2013. Such summary was =FNA+—HAZHRERE - BRI E ML EEE
prepared as if the current structure of the Group had been in existence — AFZ81Ef:% Z B B F/E A —E 7 £ MG R °

throughout these financial years.
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